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PART
NOTIFICATION

Significant Parties

The issuer directors

Name Business Address Residential Address

Coil Bowen III Wilbert Burial Vault Co 269 West 26th Street

195 Mendel Drive SW Sea Island GA 31561

Atlanta GA 30336

Steven Bush St Louis Wilbert Vault Inc 3417 5th

3239 Alfred Avenue Quincy IL 62305

St Louis MO 63116

Paul Cooper Cooper Wilbert Vault Co Inc 681 Elk Road

621 East Atlantic Avenue Moriroeville NJ 08343

Barrington NJ 08007

Terry Christenberry Capital Advisors 835 West 54th Terrace

1100 Main Street Suite 1800 Kansas City MO 64112

Kansas City MO 64105

Randy Fehrenbacher Bickes Inc 8317 Russell Circle

919 West Eldorado Street Dalton City IL 61925

Decatur IL 62522

James Mans P.O Box 290049 3730 Club View Court

Kerrville TX 78029 Kerrville TX 78028

Charles Morley New Hampshire Wilbert Vault Co 1465 Hooksett Road 414
77 Regional Drive Hooksett NH 03106

Concord NH 03301

Dennis Welzenbach Suhor Industries Inc 2321 123rd Terrace

10965 Granada Lane Suite 300 Leawood KS 66209

Overland Park KS 66211

John Williams Williams Wilbert Vault Works Inc 4008 Highwood Court NW
3420 SW 9th Street Washington DC 20007

Des Moines IA 50315

The issuers officers

Name Business Address Residential Address

Michael Bogacki Wilbert Funeral Services Inc 168 Riverside Drive

2913 Gardner Road Northfield IL 60093

Broadview Illinois 60155
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Name Business Address Residential Address

Wm Anthony Colson Wilbert Funeral Services Inc 16 Ivy Lane

2913 Gardner Road Oak Brook IL 60523

Broadview Illinois 60155

Denny Wm Knigga Wilbert Funeral Services Inc 1029 Hudson Bay Drive

2913 Gardner Road Greenwood IN 46142

Broadview Illinois 60155

Adrian Lee Wilbert Funeral Services Inc 109 Viola Court

2913 Gardner Road Rolling Meadows IL 60008

Broadview Illinois 60155

James Mans P.O Box 290049 3730 Club View Court

Kerrville Texas 78029 Kerrville TX 78028

Judy Rossom Wilbert Funeral Services Inc 644 Lavina Court

2913 Gardner Road Bolingbrook IL 60440

Broadview Illinois 60155

Joseph Weigel Wilbert Funeral Services Inc 3701 Elleby Court

2913 Gardner Road North Aurora IL 60542

Broadview Illinois 60155

Terrence Whitlock Wilbert Funeral Services Inc 2319 Wilmington Court

2913 Gardner Road Naperville IL 60565

Broadview Illinois 60155

The issuers general partners

Not applicable

Record owners offive percent or more of any class of the issuers equity

securities

Name Business Address Residential Address

Steven Bickes Bickes Inc 7862 Timber Trail

919 West Eldorado Street Decatur IL 62521

Decatur IL 62522

Charles Morley New Hampshire Wilbert Vault Co 1465 Hooksett Road 414

77 Regional Drive Hooksett NH 03106

Concord NH 03301

Joseph Suhor III Suhor Industries Inc 11122 Brookwood

10965 Granada Lane Suite 300 Leawood KS 66211

Overland Park KS 66211
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Name Business Address Residential Address

John Williams Williams Wilbert Vault Works Inc 4008 Highwood Court NW
3420 SW 9th Street Washington DC 20007

Des Moines IA 50315

Beneficial owners offive percent or more of any class of the issuers equity

securities

Name Business Address Residential Address

Steven Bickes Bickes Inc 7862 Timber Trail

919 West Eldorado Street Decatur IL 65251

Decatur IL 62522

Charles Morley New Hampshire Wilbert Vault Co 1465 Hooksett Road 414

77 Regional Drive Hooksett NH 03106

Concord NH 03301

Joseph Suhor III Suhor Industries Inc 11122 Brookwood

10965 Granada Lane Suite 300 Leawood KS 66211

Overland Park KS 66211

John Williams Williams Wilbert Vault Works Inc 4008 Highwood Court NW
3420 SW 9th Street Washington DC 20007

Des Moines IA 50315

Promoters of the issuer

Not applicable

Affiliates of the Issuer

Not applicable

Counsel to the issuer with respect to the proposed offering

Polsinelli Shughart PC

700 West 47th Street Suite 1000

Kansas City MO 64112

Each underwriter with respect to the proposed offering

Not applicable

The underwriters directors

Not applicable
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The underwriters officers

Not applicable

The underwriter general partners

Not applicable

rn Counsel to the underwriter

Not applicable

Application of Rule 262

None of the persons identified in response to Item are subject to the

disqualification provisions set forth in Rule 262

Not applicable

Affiliate Sales

No part of the proposed offering involves the resale of securities by affiliates of

Wilbert Inc

Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered

Indiana North Carolina Georgia Pennsylvania Texas Nebraska New York South

Carolina Arkansas Ohio California New Hampshire Illinois Iowa Michigan Florida

Minnesota Wisconsin North Dakota Maryland Mississippi Tennessee South Dakota

Kentucky New Jersey West Virginia Alabama Virginia Kansas Missouri and Connecticut

The issuer believe that the Securities may be offered and sold in these states without

registration of the securities being offered based on exemptions available in these jurisdictions

with respect to the offer and sale of securities by an issuer to its existing security holders and

or ii the offer and sale of securities by an issuer to limited number of purchasers within the

jurisdiction

Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

The issuer has not sold unregistered securities within one year of the filing date of the

Offering Statement In December 2008 unregistered shares totaling 177437 of Company

common stock were distributed to the shareholders of the Companys former parent company in

spin-off transaction The spin-off occurred without registration based on the Companys

understanding that the distribution of the shares in the spin-off transaction did not constitute

sale and therefore were not required to be registered under federal securities laws

Other Present or Proposed Offerings

Not applicable
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Marketing Arrangements

Not applicable

Relationship with Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement

Not applicable

Use of Solicitation of Interest Document

No written document or broadcast script was used by the issuer prior to the filing of this

Notification
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PART II

OFFERINGCIRCULAR

WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC

an Illinois Corporation

Up to 150000 Shares of Common Stock $0.001 par value

Subscription Price $20.00 per Share

Total Offering $3000000 150000 Shares

Wilbert Funeral Services Inc is offering to its shareholders of record as of 2010

the right to subscribe to purchase up to 150000 shares of its common stock the Shares at

subscription price of $20.00 per share See Who May Invest and Plan of Distribution The

maximum number of Shares each of our eligible shareholders may subscribe for in the offering is

subject to the allocation procedures set forth described in Plan of Distribution Structure of the

Offering The offering which will terminate 60 days from the date of this Offering Circular

_______________ 2010 will be conducted in up to three phases During the first phase of the

offering each of our eligible existing shareholders will be given the opportunity to subscribe to

purchase up to such persons pro rata portion of the Shares being offered based on the number of

shares of common stock held of record by such person as of 2010 as

compared with the total number of shares of common stock held of record by all of our existing

shareholders at that time This initial phase will expire at 500 p.m Central time on

_____________2010 unless extended by us Your eligibility to subscribe for Shares in

subsequent offering phase if any will be dependent upon your agreement to purchase your full

pro rata portion of the Shares available to you in the earlier phase or phases The closing on the

purchase of any Shares subscribed for in the offering is conditioned on receipt of an opinion of

tax counsel that the sale of Shares in the offering will not adversely affect the tax-free status of

our spin-off from our former parent company. See Plan of Distribution Closing Condition

Pending satisfaction of this closing condition all subscription amounts will be held in escrow for

the benefit of subscribers See Plan of Distribution Subscription Procedures There is no

minimumnumber of Shares that must be subscribed for in order to complete the offering

We are headquartered in Broadview Illinois with our principal executive office located at

2913 Gardner Road Broadview Illinois 60155 and our telephone number is 708 865-1600

Our web site address is www.wilbertonline.com

The date of this Offering Circular is _________ 2010

Subscription Proceeds To

Price1 Commissions2 Company3

Per Share $20 $-0- $20

Total Maximum 150000 Shares $3000000 $-0- $3000000

The subscription price is payable in full upon delivery of subscription agreement See

Plan of Distribution
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The Shares are being offered on best efforts basis by certain of our officers No sales

commissions or other remunerations will be paid to our officers in connection with the sale of the

Shares No broker or dealer has been retained or is under any obligation to purchase any Shares

See Plan of Distribution

The closing on the purchase of any Shares subscribed for in the offering is conditioned on

receipt of an opinion of tax counsel that the sale of Shares in the offering will not adversely

affect the tax-free status of our spin-off from our former parent company See Plan of

Distribution Closing Condition Accordingly there is no assurance that any or all of the

Shares offered by this Offering Circular will be sold The amounts shown are before deducting

offering expenses which are estimated to total approximately $250000 See Use of Proceeds

The Shares are highly speculative and involve high degree of risk See Risk Factors

and should be considered only by persons who can afford the loss of their entire investment

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has

passed upon the merits of or given its approval to the Shares being offered or the terms of the

offering nor have they passed upon the accuracy or completeness of this Offering Circular or

other selling literature These Shares are offered pursuant to an exemption from registration

under the Securities Act of 1933 and certain state securities laws however neither the Securities

and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has made an independent

determination that the Shares offered are exempt from registration

No person has been authorized to make representations or give any information on

behalf of us or about the securities offered except the information contained in this Offering

Circular You should not rely on any information outside of this Offering Circular

You should not assume that the information in this Offering Circular is accurate as of

any date other than the date on the front of the Offering Circular Our business financial

condition results of operations and prospects may have changed since that date

For investors outside of the United States we have not done anything that would permit

this offering orpossession or distribution of this Offering Circular in any jurisdiction where

action for that purpose is required Persons outside the United States who come into possession

of this Offering Circular must inform themselves about and observe any restrictions relating to

the offering of the Shares and the distribution of this Offering Circular outside of the United

States

11
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This Offering Circular does not constitute an offer or solicitation to anyone in any

jurisdiction in which such an offer or solicitation is not permitted under applicable law or to any

person who does not possess the qualifications discussed in this Offering Circular

Market data and certain industry forecasts used herein were obtained from internal

surveys market research publicly available information and industry publications that we

believe to be reliable Industry publications generally state that the information contained

therein has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but that the accuracy and

completeness of such information is not guaranteed Similarly industry forecasts and market

research while believed to be reliable have not been independently verfIed

Wilbert and The Wilbert Bronze are trademarks of Wilbert Funeral Services Inc in the

United States and Canada This Offering Circular also includes other trademarks of Wilbert

Funeral Services Inc

111
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DISCLOSURE REGARDING
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Offering Circular and the documents incorporated by reference into this Offering

Circular contain both historical and forward-looking statements All statements other than

statements of historical fact are or may be deemed to be forward-looking statements These

forward-looking statements are not based on historical facts but rather reflect the current

expectations concerning future results and events of Wilbert Funeral Services Inc These

forward-looking statements generally can be identified by the use of statements that include

words such as believe expect anticipate intend plan foresee likely will or

other similar words or phrases Similarly statements that describe our objectives plans or goals

are or may be forward-looking statements These forward-looking statements are not

guarantees of future performance and involve known and unknown risks uncertainties and other

factors that are difficult to predict and that may cause our actual results performance or

achievements to be different from any future results performance and achievements expressed or

implied by these statements There may be additional risks uncertainties and factors that we do

not currently view as material or that are not necessarily known We cannot make any assurance

that projected results or events will be achieved The forward looking statements included or

incorporated by reference in this Offering Circular are only made as of the date of this Offering

Circular or the respective incorporated document and we do not have any obligation to publicly

update any forward-looking statement to reflect subsequent events or circumstances The risk

factors in the section entitled Risk Factors among others could affect future results causing

these results to differ materially from those expressed in our forward-looking statements

These forward-looking statements should not be relied upon as representing our views as

of any date subsequent to the date of this Offering Circular We undertake no obligation to

update any of the forward-looking statements made in this Offering Circular whether as result

of new information future events changes in expectations or otherwise

You should rely only on the information contained in this Offering Circular We have

not authorized anyone to provide you with any additional information This Offering Circular is

dated as of the date listed on the cover page of this Offering Circular You should not assume

that the information contained in this Offering Circular is accurate as of any date other than such

date

SUMMARY

From January 1997 to December 2008 we operated our business as wholly owned

subsidiary of Wilbert Inc WI In December 2008 ownership of our common stock was

spun-offfrom WI to the shareholders of WI through tax-free distribution of our shares As

result of this transaction we now operate our funeral services business independent of WI and

its subsidiaries Unless the context requires otherwise in this Offering Circular we use the

terms we us our and the Company to refer to Wilbert Funeral Services Inc The

following summary is intended to give prospective investors brief overview of certain aspects

of the offering and the Company This summary is qualified in its entirely by the more detailed

discussions contained elsewhere in this Offering Circular which prospective investors are urged

to review prior to any investment decision
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The Company Wilbert Funeral Services Inc an Illinois corporation located in

Broadview Illinois sells burial vault liners and funeral service products to

network of licensed independently owned manufacturers of burial and

urn vaults located throughout the United States and several located

elsewhere in North America See Our Company and Our Business

Offering We are offering up to 150000 Shares to our existing shareholders at

$20.00 per Share The opportunity to subscribe for Shares will first be

allocated pro rata among our shareholders of record as of

________________
2010 and thereafter to those shareholders who have

subscribed to purchase the full amount of their pro rata interest and who

express an interest in subscribing to purchase additional Shares See Plan

of Distribution Prior to the commencement of the offering we had

177437 shares of common stock outstanding After the offering 327437

shares of common stock will be outstanding if all of the Shares offered are

sold See Description of Capital Stock

Use of Proceeds We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering for working capital

and other general corporate purposes which may include identifying and

developing new funeral and cremation products and services and funding

expenditures associated with strengthening our licensee network We also

may use portion of the net proceeds to acquire businesses products or

services we believe to be complementary However we do not have

agreements or commitments for any specific acquisitions at this time

Risk Factors The Shares offered hereby are speculative and an investment therein

involves high degree of risk See Risk Factors

WHO MAY IN VEST

Only our shareholders of record as of 2010 may subscribe for the purchase of

Shares in this offering In addition only those subscribers who remain the holders of record as

of the subscription closing date of the common stock giving rise to the subscription rights in this

offering may purchase Shares In order to subscribe for Shares you will be required to execute

and deliver subscription agreement In the subscription agreement you will be required to

represent and warrant among other things that you are shareholder of the Company as of the

date of your subscription and that you are purchasing the Shares on your own behalf for

investment purposes only You will also need to confirm your place of residence

Your should not participate in the offering if you are incapable of bearing the risks

involved in owning Shares including their lack of liquidity

OUR COMPANY

General

We are licensor of and supplier to independently owned concrete burial and urn vault

manufacturers that are licensed to manufacture Wilbert brand burial and urn vaults under an
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intellectual property license agreement All revenues are generated through the activity of the

licensee network

We sell liners and funeral service products to independently owned manufacturers of

concrete products including burial and urn vaults located throughout the United States and

North America This represents approximately 76% of our revenues We provide our licensees

license to use our trademarks trade names and patents pursuant to intellectual property

agreements This represents approximately 1% of our revenues We manufacture metal vault

forms and metal components used in constructing vaults as well as line of metal vaults known

as The Wilbert Bronze for sale to our licensees This represents approximately 23% of our

revenues

We are headquartered in Broadview Illinois with our principal executive office located at

2913 Gardner Road Broadview Illinois 60155 and our telephone number is 708 865-1600

Our web site address is www.wilbertonline.com

Corporate History

Our predecessor companies date back to 1880 In 1929 Wilbert Haase Co was

founded with the purpose of manufacturing patented burial vaults under the Wilbert trademark

In 1967 Wilbert Haase Co changed its name to Wilbert Inc In 1997 we were created as

wholly owned subsidiary of WI to operate its funeral services business

In December 2008 ownership of our common stock was spun-off from WI to the

shareholders of WI through distribution of our shares pursuant to the terms of separation

agreement dated December 27 2008 the Separation Agreement As result of this spin-off

transaction we now operate our funeral services business independent of WI and its subsidiaries

The organizational chart below illustrates our relationship with WI immediately prior to

and following the spin-off and the change in our direct ownership as result of this transaction

Before Spin-Off Following Spin-Off

SharetoIders

Own 100%
of Wibert Funeral Servtes

lrc and W0% afWllbart

Inc

As result of the consummation of the transactions specified in the Separation Agreement
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our employees assets including plastic liner tooling and related patents and liabilities

WIs Broadview Illinois facility the Broadview Facility and $3.5 million of WIs

existing credit facility generally were transferred to assumed by or retained by us

the remaining employees assets properties and liabilities of WI generally were

transferred to assumed by or retained by WI and WI continued its business of

manufacturing and selling thermoform and injection molded plastic parts

our Articles of Incorporation and By-laws were amended and restated to be substantially

the same as the Articles of Incorporation and By-laws of WI that were then in effect

except for the inclusion in our By-laws of certain restrictions on transfer and on serving

as director on our board and on the board of WI and except as to the number of directors

on our board

each WI shareholder on the spin-off record date received dividend of one share of our

common stock for every share of WI common stock then held by that shareholder

as the result of the dividend WI shareholders received at that time 100% direct

ownership of WIs funeral services business through their ownership of our common

stock

following the dividend WIs shareholders continued to hold 100% ownership of WIs

industrial plastics business through their ownership of WI and

we and WI each refinanced portion of WIs then existing credit facility with new

separate credit facility

The spin-off followed the unanimous determination by the WI board of directors that the

spin-off was in the best interest of WI shareholders The following factors were considered by

the WI board in approving the spin-off

the spin-off would result in more focused companies better able to respond quickly

and successfully to changes in their respective industries

the spin-off would resolve existing conflicts between the interests of the funeral

services business and the industrial plastics business

the spin-off would give each company the opportunity to create targeted incentives

for its employees

the spin-off would allow each business to attract and retain superior management

the spin-off was expected to facilitate the companies in obtaining financing to expand

their operations and

the spin-off would eliminate the risks of affiliation of two otherwise unrelated

businesses

For federal income tax purposes the parties to the spin-off transaction treated the

distribution as tax-free under Internal Revenue Code Section 355 In connection with the spin
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off we entered into an agreement the Tax Matters Agreement with WI that limits our ability

to engage in certain transactions including certain stock issuances for two-year period

following the spin-off transaction See Risk Factors -- Risks Arising From Our Tax Matters

Agreement with WI The Tax Matters Agreement does permit us to issue equity securities in

transaction such as this offering that would otherwise breach the terms of the agreement

provided that WI first receives an unqualified opinion from tax counsel that such transaction will

not adversely affect the tax-free status of the spin-off

RISK FACTORS

Investing in the Shares involves high degree of risk You should carefully consider the

following risks and all other information contained in this Offering Circular including our

financial statements and the related notes before investing in the Shares The risks and

uncertainties described below are not the only ones we face Additional risks and uncertainties

that we are unaware of or that we currently believe are not material also may become

important factors that affect us If any of the following risks materialize our business financial

condition and results of operations could be materially harmed In that case you may lose some

or all ofyour investment

Risks Relating to the Business

Death rates in the U.S have been declining since the 1950s There is no meaningful near-

term increase in the numbers of deaths

The life expectancy of U.S citizens has increased steadily since the 950s and is

expected to continue to do so for the foreseeable future As the population of the United States

continues to age we anticipate the number of deaths in North America will be relatively flat until

the number of deaths increase due to aging baby boomers who constitute significant percentage

of the U.S population declining death rate combined with no meaningful near-term increase

in the number of deaths shifts sales of our products into the future which has an adverse effect

on our financial condition results of operations and cash flow in the near-term

The increasing trend toward cremation may result in decreased revenues

Cremations as percentage of total U.S deaths have increased steadily since the 960s

and are also expected to continue to increase for the foreseeable future Therefore the number of

U.S cremations is gradually and steadily increasing resulting in lower demand for burial

vaults which was contributing factor to lower burial vault sales volumes for our licensees in

each of fiscal years 2008 2007 and 2006 We expect these trends to continue into the foreseeable

future and burial vault sales volumes will likely continue to be negatively impacted by the

increasing trend toward cremation

There is increasing competition from low cost retailers

The rising cost of traditional funeral has made funeral homes increasingly sensitive to

the cost of the components of funerals total cost that do not accrue to their own benefit such

as the cost of burial vault In recent years there has been an influx of retail outlets and internet

websites specializing in the sale of funeral and cemetery products particularly caskets and

vaults These types of businesses have grown in number and have caused pricing pressure in
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certain markets which has already adversely affected our licensees and in turn us It is likely

that such pricing pressures may have an increasingly adverse effect on our business

The funeral services industry is subject to regulatory exposure

The funeral services industry is heavily regulated at the federal and state levels There is

continuous movement toward stricter regulatory environment and we cannot predict the

effect on our financial condition and operating results of stricter regulatory environment

We do not have long operating history as separate company

Prior to the consummation of our separation from WI in December 2008 we operated as

wholly owned subsidiary of WI Accordingly until the separation we had not been

responsible for performing various corporate functions including tax administration treasury

administration compensation and benefits administration investor relations internal audit and

risk management

We are dependent on WI our formerparent company as our sole source supplier ofplastic

burial vault liners and other plastic products

We are dependent on WI as our sole supplier of plastic burial vault liners and other

plastic products We have entered into supply agreement the Manufacturing and Supply

Agreement with WI pursuant to which WI manufactures plastic burial and urn vault liners

exclusively for us During fiscal year 2009 purchases of plastic products from WI totaled $18.0

million If WI does not continue to effectively perform its obligations under the Manufacturing

and Supply Agreement we may not be able to operate our business effectively and our

profitability may decline

Upon the termination of the Manufacturing and Supply Agreement with WI we may

experience increased costs

Our Manufacturing and Supply Agreement with WI expires in 2013 unless extended If

the agreement is not renewed after its expiration we will be required to find another supplier for

our plastic products While we believe that we will be able to find another supplier or suppliers

for these products on substantially similarprices and terms no assurance can be given that we

will not incur higher costs to obtain such products than we incurred under the terms of our

current agreement with WI

Our financing arrangement contains several restrictive covenants

Our current credit facility contains number of covenants imposing limitations These

restrictions may affect our ability to operate the business and may limit our ability to take

advantage of potential business opportunities as they arise The credit facility limits our ability

to among other things

incur additional indebtedness

pay dividends or make distributions in respect of our capital stock
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create liens

make acquisitions and

change ownership

The credit facility requires us to maintain ratio of funded debt to earnings before

interest taxes depreciation and amortization referred to as the cash flow leverage ratio of not

more that two times the funded debt level and ratio of earnings before interest and taxes to

interest expense referred to as the interest coverage ratio of more than three times the amount

of interest expense for the period The Company is in compliance with these provisions under

the credit facility as of December 31 2009 Our ability to comply with these agreements and

requirements may be affected by events beyond our control including prevailing economic

financial and industry conditions and other risk factors set forth in this Offering Circular The

breach of any of these covenants or restrictions could result in default under the credit facility

An event of default under other debt agreements should they exist in the future would permit

the lender to terminate the line of credit prior to the date of its maturity and to declare all

amounts borrowed from the lender to be immediately due and payable

Recent global market and economic conditions including those related to the credit markets

could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition and results of

operations

The recent worldwide financial and credit market disruptions and uncertainty have

reduced the availability of credit The shortage of credit combined with the recent substantial

losses in equity markets and other economic developments could lead to an extended worldwide

economic recession

general slowdown in economic activity caused by recession could adversely affect

our business in several ways continuation or worsening of the current credit markets and

economic conditions could adversely affect our customers ability to obtain sufficient credit or

pay for our products within the terms of sale and as result our reserves for doubtful accounts

and write-offs could increase If certain key or sole suppliers were to become capacity

constrained or insolvent as result of the global economic conditions it could result in

reduction or interruption in supplies or significant increase in the price of supplies

We are dependent on the continued services and performance of our senior management the

loss of any of whom could adversely affrct our business operating results and financial

condition

Our future performance depends on the continued services and continuing contributions

of our senior management to execute on our business plan and to identify and pursue new

product opportunities The loss of services of senior management could significantly delay or

prevent the achievement of our development and strategic objectives In addition key personnel

may be distracted by activities unrelated to our business The loss of the services or distraction

of our senior management for any reason could adversely affect our business financial condition

and results of operations
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If we are unable to develop new products to compliment our existing products and services

our growth prospects will be diminished

Our current business continues to be negatively impacted by industry trends If we are

unable to timely develop and introduce new products and services or enhance existing products

and services in response to these industry trends or customer requirements or demands our

growth prospects will be diminished

The average sales prices of our manufactured and licensed products may decrease which may
reduce our gross profits

We recently announced reduced pricing on certain of our products Such pricing actions

are evaluated in light of the competitive and economic conditions that exist in the marketplace

We attempt to assist our licensee manufacturers to be the lowest cost producer of bunal vaults by

supplying them with high quality materials at low prices Recently announced pricing actions on

burial vault liners jrimarilyplastic are expected to result in lowering 2010 revenues by

approximately $1.3 million We have been able to obtain purchase price concessions from WI in

order to substantially mitigate the net effect on our operations of this reduced revenue in 2010

Additional actions to offset the effect of these reduced prices are being implemented but there

can be no assurances given that the results of these cost reductions will be realized either now or

in the future In addition the ability to pass through the effect of increases in raw material or

manufacturing costs should they occur cannot be assured

Increased prices for or unavailability of raw materials used in our products could adversely

affrct profitability or revenues In particular our results of operations continue to be

adversely affected by changing prices for steel copper bronze and fueL

We use various commodities in the manufacture and delivery of our products Volatility

in the commodity markets may result in cost changes to us that may not be recoverable through

pricing actions to our customers in timely manner

Tax Risks

Our issuance of Shares in the offering could cause the spin-off to be taxable which could

result in substantial tax liability for the WI shareholders who received our common stock in

the spin-off and/or WL

In connection with the spin-off WI received an opinion of tax counsel to the effect that

subject to the accelerated taxation of certain deferred intercompany transactions the spin-off

would qualify as eligible for nonrecognition treatment for both WI and its shareholders under

Section 355 of the Code The opinion of counsel was based in part on assumptions and

representations as to factual matters made by among others WI members of WI management

members of WI board of directors and us as requested by counsel which if incorrect could

jeopardize the conclusions reached by counsel An opinion of counsel represents counsels best

legal judgment and neither binds the Internal Revenue Service nor any court nor precludes the

Internal Revenue Service from adopting contrary position

Even if the spin-off qualified as tax-free distribution under Section 355 of the Code

based upon the facts in existence at the time of the spin-off our issuance of stock in the offering
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could cause the spin-off to fail to qualify as tax-free distribution under Code Section 355

Whether our issuance of stock in the offering will cause the spin-off to become taxable depends

upon the application of rules contained in Code Section 355 including rules under Code Section

355e addressing acquisitions dispositions or issuances of our stock Under Section 55e if

there are acquisitions dispositions or issuances of our stock entered into as part of plan or

series of related transactions that includes the spin-off and that result in an acquisition of 50% or

more of our stock outstanding by vote or value the distribution of our stock in the spin-off

would be taxable to WI but not WIs shareholders who received our stock in the spin-off

Current U.S federal income tax law creates presumption that if there is 50% or greater

change in stock ownership during the four-year period that begins two years before the date of

the spin-off then the change in ownership is treated as pursuant to plan with the spin-off unless

it is established to the contrary In this regard we are aware of past transfers of approximately

18% of our stock that would be presumed to be part of such plan in the absence of an

applicable exception In addition the Internal Revenue Service could take the view that any

issuance of our common stock in the proposed offering should be presumed to be part of such

plan The Treasury Regulations currently in effect generally provide that whether transfers of

stock before or after spin-off are deemed part of plan is determined based on all of the facts

and circumstances including but not limited to specific factors described in the Treasury

Regulations

Whether the sale of Shares in the offering when aggregated with the past transfers of

ownership of our stock discussed above will result in determination that 50% or greater

change in our stock ownership has occurred depends on the extent to which such sales in the

offering are taken into account for the purposes of Code Section 355e Under Code Section

355e an acquisition of stock shall not be taken into account to the extent that the percentage of

stock owned directly or indirectly in corporation by each person owning stock immediately

before the acquisition does not decrease Because the offering is pro rata to all of our

shareholders only changes in ownership resulting from those shareholders who decline to

participate to the full extent of their pro rata portion of the offering will be taken into account for

the purpose of calculating change of ownership for the purposes of Section 355e If for

example each of our current shareholders elects to purchase their full pro rata portion of the

offering all 150000 Shares being offered will be placed but no change in the equity ownership

of the Company will have occurred as result of this offering for the purposes of Code Section

355e As this example demonstrates the greater the pro rata participation in the offering the

less likely 50% change of ownership will occur For this reason we believe receipt of

subscriptions during the initial phase of the offering from existing shareholders holding at least

31% of our common stock outstanding indicating their agreement to purchase their full pro rata

portion of the Shares available to them will be an important factor in avoiding determination

that 50% or greater change in ownership has occurred If the spin-off complied with all of the

provisions of Code Section 355 other than Code Section 355e then WI would be subject to tax

on the spin-off as if it had sold the common stock of our company in taxable sale for its fair

market value but the WI shareholders who received our common stock in the spin-off would

nonetheless be entitled to tax-free treatment with respect to the spin-off However if the spin-off

failed to satisfy the provisions of Code Section 355 generally then in addition to WIs being

subject to tax on the spin-off WIs shareholders who received our common stock in the spin-off

would be subject to tax as if they had received taxable distribution equal to the fair market

value of our common stock that was distributed to them In either case the tax liability that
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would be incurred by WI and/or its shareholders as applicable as result of failing to qualify

for tax-free treatment under Code Section 355 would be substantial

To guard against WI or its shareholders who received our stock in the spin-off incurring

tax liability due to violation of Code Section 355 we have conditioned the sale of Shares in the

offering on receipt of an opinion of tax counsel that the offering will not adversely affect the tax-

free status of the spin-off See Plan of Distribution Closing Condition The opinion of

counsel will be based in part on certain assumptions and representations as requested by

counsel including assumptions and representations to the effect that closing on the subscriptions

received in the offering when aggregated with certain other transactions in our stock and the

stock of WI during the period beginning on the date which is two years before the date of the

spin-off and ending on the subscription closing date will not result in 50% or greater change

by vote or value in our stock ownership If any assumption or representation is incorrect it

could jeopardize the conclusions reached by counsel An opinion of counsel represents counsels

best legal judgment and neither binds the Internal Revenue Service nor any court nor precludes

the Internal Revenue Service from adopting contrary position

Risks Arising From our Tax Matters Agreement with WI

If the offering causes the spin-off to be taxable we will incur significant indemnification

liability under the Tax Matters Agreement

In connection with the spin-off we entered into the Tax Matters Agreement with WI

Under the Tax Matters Agreement we would be required to indemnify WI from and against any

liability for tax that is attributable to or results from the sale of Shares in the offering causing the

spin-off to not qualify as tax-free distribution under Section 355 of the Code

As discussed above our sale of Shares pursuant to the offering could cause the spin-off to

fail to qualify as tax-free under Code Section 355 either under the 50% rule of Section 355e or

more generally See Tax Risks Our issuance of stock in the offering could cause the spin-off

to be taxable which could result in substantial tax liability for the WI shareholders who received

our common stock in the spin-off and/or WI If the offering causes the spin-off to be taxable

then we will incur substantial indemnification liability under the Tax Matters Agreement Our

indemnification obligations under the Tax Matters Agreement are not limited by any maximum

amount

To satisfy our obligations under the Tax Matters Agreement with respect to contemplated

Share issuances pursuant to the offering and to otherwise guard against our incurring

indemnification liability under the Tax Matters Agreement we have conditioned the sale of

Shares in the offering on receipt of an opinion of tax counsel that the offering will not adversely

affect the tax-free status of the spin-off See Plan of Distribution Closing Condition As

noted above the opinion of counsel will be based in part on certain assumptions and

representations as to factual matters as requested by counsel which if incorrect could

jeopardize the conclusions reached by counsel An opinion of counsel represents counsels best

legal judgment and neither binds the Internal Revenue Service nor any court nor precludes the

Internal Revenue Service from adopting contrary position
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Our ability to engage in desirable strategic transactions and equity issuances is limited by the

Tax Matters Agreement we entered into with WI

To preserve the tax-free treatment to WI and its shareholders of the spin-off we are

prohibited by the terms of the Tax Matters Agreement except in specified circumstances from

issuing equity securities except with the approval of WI

engaging in certain business combinations or asset sale transactions or

engaging in other actions or transactions that could jeopardize the tax-free status of

the distribution

These Tax Matters Agreement restrictions which continue until December 28 2010 may

prevent us from entering into transactions that might be advantageous to our business and our

shareholders such as issuing equity securities to satisfy financing needs or acquiring businesses

or assets with equity securities In addition we may be less attractive to potential acquirer and

reduce the possibilitythat an acquirer will propose or seek to effect certain transactions with us

The receipt of subscription rights may be treated as taxable distribution to you

The distribution of the subscription rights in this offering will be non-taxable distribution

under Section 305a of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code Please see

the discussion on the Material U.S Federal Income Tax Considerations below This position is

not binding on the IRS or the courts however If this offering is deemed to be part of

disproportionate distribution under Section 305 of the Code your receipt of subscription rights

in this offering may be treated as the receipt of taxable distribution to you equal to the fair

market value of the subscription rights Any such distribution would be treated as dividend

income to the extent of our current and accumulated earnings and profits if any with any excess

being treated as return of capital to the extent thereof and then as capital gain Please see the

discussion of the Material U.S Federal Income Tax Consequences in this Offering Circular for

additional information Each holder of common stock is urged to consult his her or its own tax

advisor with respect to the particular tax consequences of this offering

Risks Relating to this Offering and Our Common Stock

No Dividends

While payment of dividends on our common stock rests with the discretion of our board

of directors there can be no assurance that dividends can or will ever be paid Payments of

dividends are contingent upon among other things future earnings if any our financial

condition capital requirements general business conditions and other factors that cannot be

predicted It is unlikely that we will pay dividends on the Shares in the foreseeable future See

Description of Capital Stock

Lack of liquidity with respect to the Shares

Prior to this offering there has been no public market for our common stock No public

market for our common stock will develop as result of this offering Moreover our by-laws as
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amended contain restrictions on the ability of our shareholders to transfer their shares of

common stock Accordingly there is little opportunity for liquidity with respect to the Shares

Subscription Price for the Shares

The subscription price for the Shares in this offering was set by our board of directors and

does not necessarily bear any relationship to the book value of our assets results of operations

cash flows financial condition or any other established criteria for value Accordingly you

should not consider the subscription price as an indication of the actual value of the Shares

Our management will have broad discretion over the use of the proceeds we receive in this

offering and might not apply the proceeds in ways that increase the value of your investment

Our management will have broad discretion over the use of our net proceeds from this

offering and you will be relying on the judgment of our management regarding the application

of these proceeds Our management might not apply our net proceeds in ways that ultimately

increase the value of your investment We expect to use the net proceeds from this offering for

working capital and other general corporate purposes which may include identifying and

developing new funeral and cremation products and services and funding expenditures

associated with strengthening our licensee network We also may use portion of the net

proceeds to acquire businesses products or services we believe to be complementary However

we do not have agreements or commitments for any specific acquisitions at this time We might

not be able to yield significant return if any on any investment of these net proceeds

We may cancel the offering at any time without further obligation to you

We may in our sole discretion cancel the offering before it terminates If we cancel the

offering we will not have any obligation to you with respect to the subscription rights except to

return any subscription payment received without interest or deduction as soon as practicable

Ifyou do not exercise your Phase Isubscription right in full your percentage ownership and

voting rights in the Company will likely be diluted

If you choose not to subscribe to purchase any Shares available to you in Phase of the

offering you will continue to own your current number of Company shares but your percentage

ownership and voting rights in the Company will be diluted if and to the extent that other

shareholders participate in the offering In this same regard if you do not exercise your Phase

subscription right in full your percentage ownership and voting rights in the Company at the

completion of this offering will likely be diluted In addition if you do not subscribe to

purchase your full pro rata portion of the Shares available to you in Phase you will not be

eligible to subscribe for Shares that remain unsubscribed after the expiration of Phase See

Plan of Distribution Structure of the Offering Phase

We cannot guarantee that you will receive any or the entire amount of Shares for which you

over-subscribed in Phase III of the offering

Phase III Eligible Shareholders who fully exercise their Phase III basic subscription right

will be entitled to subscribe for an additional number of Shares that remain unsubscribed as of

the expiration of Phase III of the offering We will allocate the available Shares among the
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Phase III Eligible Shareholders who over-subscribe in the proportion by which the number of

Shares each such Phase III Eligible Shareholder subscribed to purchase through the Phase III

basic subscription right bears to the total number of Shares that all over-subscribing Phase III

Eligible Shareholders subscribed to purchase through the Phase III basic subscription right If

you are Phase III Eligible Shareholder and you subscribe for additional Shares pursuant to your

Phase III over-subscription privilege we cannot guarantee that you will receive any or the entire

amount of Shares for which you over-subscribed If the pro rated amount of Shares allocated to

you in connection with your Phase III over-subscription privilege is less than your over

subscription request then the excess funds held by the escrow agent on your behalf will be

returned to you promptly without interest or deduction and we will have no further obligations to

you See Plan of Distribution Structure of the Offering Phase III

You may not receive all the Shares you subscribe for pursuant to your Phase III over

subscription privilege Until that determination is made you will not have use of your funds

If you are Phase III Eligible Shareholder and you subscribe for additional Shares

pursuant to your Phase III over-subscription privilege you may not be able to purchase all of the

Shares you subscribe for pursuant to your Phase III over-subscription privilege which is

dependent on the number of Shares subscribed for pursuant to the Phase III basic subscription

rights and the total number of Shares subscribed for pursuant to the Phase III over-subscription

privileges As result Phase III Eligible Shareholder cannot be assured of receiving any

Shares subscribed for pursuant to such persons Phase III over-subscription privilege and may

forego use of such persons funds pending allocation of available Shares

Ifyou do not act promptly and follow the subscription instructions your exercise of

subscription rights may be rejected

An eligible shareholder of our common stock who desires to purchase Shares in phase

of the offering must act promptly to ensure that the applicable subscription agreement and

subscription payment are delivered by the scheduled expiration date of the applicable phase of

the offering

If you fail to complete and sign the required subscription agreement send an incorrect

payment amount or otherwise fail to follow the subscription procedures that apply to your

exercise of subscription rights in the offering we may depending on the circumstances reject

your subscription or accept it only to the extent of the payment received We have the sole

discretion to determine whether subscription properly follows the subscription procedures

OUR BUSINESS

General

All of our revenues are generated through the activity of the licensee network We sell

our brand name products through our licensee network and serve our independently owned

licensees with assistance in sales and marketing education and training technical services and

other products and services Under an intellectual property license agreement described in the

section Licensees the licensees have the right to manufacture and sell Wilbert brand concrete

13

1836096.7



burial vaults and urn vaults as well as certain other branded items such as cremation urns and

memorialization products in specified territories throughout the United States and Canada

We sell liners and funeral service products to licensed independently owned

manufacturers of concrete products including burial and urn vaults located throughout the

United States and North America This represents approximately 76% of our revenues We

provide our licensees license to use our trademarks trade names and patents pursuant to

intellectual property agreements This represents approximately 1% of our revenues We

manufacture metal vault forms and metal components used in constructing vaults as well as

line of metal vaults known as The Wilbert Bronze for sale to our licensees This represents

approximately 23% of our revenues We derive our revenues through sales of our manufactured

products and products that we source from others only to our licensees Our licensees also pay

royalties to us based upon interment of our products by the individual licensee

We sell our licensees the following products vault forms metal and plastic vault liners

adhesives coatings various connective components and related products The plastic liners we

sell are made of heavy gauge plastic Our metal liners are more protective and therefore more

costly option that can be selected by the customer Revenues are based upon standard price

list for our products Standard terms and conditions of sales require payment for the goods and

services within 30 days from the date of shipment although there are certain situations where

extended terms may be given Late charges are assessed when payments are not received on

timely basis and various other actions are taken to enforce our credit policies

We also offer our cremation choices program which provides training and educational

aid for both licensees and funeral directors on the merchandising of cremation cremation

products and cremation services

Licensees market and sell burial and urn vault products and other licensed products

primarily to funeral homes and to lesser extent cemeteries located in their geographical

territories under the Wilbert brand name and various other trade names owned by us Licensees

use the vault form to pour the concrete perimeter of the vault apply metal or plastic liners to the

vaults interior using adhesives attach various connective components to the vault and deliver

and sometimes install the vault at the cemetery

We manufacture the metal vault forms and certain connective metal components used in

constructing the vaults We also manufacture the metal vault liners we sell to our licensees We

purchase the other products we sell from third parties including plastic liners which we

purchase from WIs industrial plastic group We also have supply contract with Daubert

Chemical Company Inc Daubert under which we purchase adhesives that are used in

securing liners to the walls of the burial vaults and urn vaults

We maintain an inventory of the products we manufacture at our various facilities These

products are delivered throughout North America by means of common carriers With respect to

the out-sourced plastic vault liners and urns we take delivery of these products at our

distribution facilities in Gastonia North Carolina and White Bear Lake Minnesota and inventory

and deliver them from these locations using common carriers With respect to the adhesives we

sell we take delivery of these products at our various facilities and deliver these products from

these facilities by means of common carriers
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Competition

We compete on the basis of product quality price delivery and customer service We

believe we have strong market position due to our reputation for high-quality products We

also believe our licensees are the price leaders among the providers of concrete burial vaults in

the United States Our primary national competitors include Doric Vaults Eagle Vaults Trigard

Clark Vaults and MS Vaults

Although we were the original patent holder for the Unidex process which binds wet

concrete adhesive and plastic liner all of our competitors use this technology today with only

the specific adhesive differing among them Nonetheless funeral home operators are typically

brand loyal offering their customers only single companys product line This loyalty is

derived from the service we provide as well as the services provided by our licensees ensuring

timely delivery and installation of products to the cemetery and the funeral home Brand

recognition is low among the final consumers of our products and technology the families of the

deceased

Licensees

We believe that most licensees core business is the manufacture and sale of pre-cast

concrete products of which Wilbert burial vaults and urn vaults is an important subset Our

management estimates that less than 50% of our licensees manufacture and sell only burial

vaults urn vaults or other outer burial containers In addition to the pre-cast concrete products

business minority of the licensees have diversified their businesses to include other death-care

products and services e.g operating crematoriums providing embalming services selling

monuments and grave-digging as well as various non-death-care activities e.g providing

excavation services

The overall health of the licensees businesses especially their pre-cast concrete

products businesses is important to us because healthy businesses are more likely to maintain

their vault unit volumes in the face of price competition and are more willing and able to invest

in marketing and customer service activities that pull volume through our business and enhance

the Wilbert brand When Wilbert vault unit volumes decline our sales of both consumable

supplies and vault forms decline Lower vault unit volumes of licensee enable that licensee to

defer their purchase of replacement forms because their existing forms deteriorate at slower

rate

We have an intellectual property license agreement the License Agreement with each

of our licensees Pursuant to the License Agreement the licensee is granted an exclusive license

to use our intellectual property in the manufacture processing distribution marketing servicing

and sale of burial vaults and urn vaults in the licensees geographic territory Among other

provisions if certain minimumunit sales amounts specified in the License Agreement are not

achieved the licensee is considered in breach of the License Agreement default of the

License Agreement occurs if the licensee fails to adhere to specified quality standards or to

maintain compliance with certain credit conditions default of the License Agreement can

result in termination of the License Agreement

The licensee pays specified royalty amounts to us The License Agreement permits

licensee to produce or sell our competitors products but prohibits licensee from producing or
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distributing competing products using our intellectual property The term of all of the License

Agreements expires August 31 2015 but the License Agreement provides each licensee right

of first refusal at this date to new license with us covering the licensees current geographic

territory

Industry Trends Affecting the Company

Along with our licensees whose sales are concentrated in burial vaults and urn vaults we

have faced difficult business conditions during the past eight years due to persistent annual

declines in vault unit sales These declines are indicative of the following key trends in the

United States

declining death rate which shifts unit sales into the future

the geographic dispersion of the population which means declining proportion of

deaths resulting in traditional funerals and casket burials thus negatively impacting

vault unit sales

the rising cost of funeral in part the joint product of fewer traditional funerals and

funeral homes high fixed cost structure which has made funeral homes increasingly

sensitive to the cost of those components of funerals total cost that do not accrue to

their own benefit such as the cost of burial vaults

the rising rate of alternative forms of disposal most notably cremation and double-

depth burial vaults that directly reduce unit sales of Wilbert burial vaults which are

solely single-depth vaults and

the more recently elevated number of U.S military veterans deaths coincides with an

initiative by the Veterans Administration VA to build new national cemeteries

which is contributing to reduction in unit sales of Wilbert burial vaults because

these national cemeteries mandate double-depth burial vaults and because many

veterans and their spouses are accepting the VA offer of well-subsidized burial in

national cemetery

The following table compares the decline in unit sales of Wilbert burial vaults the

decline in the U.S death rate and the rise in the cremation rate which is the number of

cremations as percent of the total number of deaths in given period during the period from

2001 through 2008 The information was obtained from internal surveys the Cremation

Association of North America the Center for Disease Control and industry websites The

information regarding U.S Death Rates for 2007 and 2008 are estimates as is the information

concerning the cremation rates for 2008

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Wilbert Burial Vault Unit Sales 359703 357819 348537 332357 329536 316564 306439 293948

Change from Prior Year -1.1% -0.5% -2.6% -4.6% -0.8% -3.9% -3.2% -4.1%

U.S.DeathRatePerl000 8.48 8.47 8.42 8.17 8.26 8.10 8.26 8.27

Change from Prior Year -0.6% -0.2% -0.5% -3.0% 1.2% -1.9% 2.0% 0.1%

Cremation rate 26.9% 27.8% 28.4% 30.9% 32.3% 33.6% 34.9% 36.1%

Change from Prior Year 2.7% 3.3% 2.2% 8.8% 4.5% 4.0% 3.9% 3.4%
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The death-care industry has encountered some adversity over the past few years Even

though all indicators have shown the actual number of deaths has been increasing the U.S death

rate which measures the number of deaths per 1000 persons has declined Moreover in 2008

the death rate was 8.27 deaths per thousand indicating nearly 2.5% decline since 2001

declining death rate shifts unit sales into the future In the medium term this trend is expected to

damage the industrys activity levels and operating profits but given the overall growth of the

U.S population and the continued aging of the baby boom generation the industry should

stabilize in approximately decade

The trend in the cremation rate depicted above is believed to be part of long-run trend

that is driven both by societys changing views on the acceptability of cremation and by the

rising cost of traditional funeral According to the Cremation Association of North America

the cremation rate is expected to increase from an estimated 36.1% in 2008 to 57.3% in 2025

The burial segment of the industry has been affected by the increasing acceptance of cremation

as an alternative to traditional burial

Cremation mausoleums single and double depth lawn crypts and the consolidation of

funeral homes have created highly competitive market The $15 billion death-care industry is

aggressively marketed by multinational corporations and funeral services and products are sold

over the phone through the mail door to door the internet and shopping malls

Historically the funeral home business has been highly fragmented However

consolidation trend which commenced in the early 990s but was somewhat abated in the late

990s appears to be on the rise again We believe that the customer base for our licensees will

continue to consolidate as national and regional chain operators continue to acquire funeral

homes and cemeteries

Regulation

We are subject to variety of federal state and local laws and regulations relating to

environmental health and safety concerns including the handling storage discharge and

disposal of hazardous materials used in or derived from our manufacturing processes We believe

that we are in substantial compliance with such statutes ordinances and regulations and that such

compliance will not have material adverse effect on our capital expenditures for the remainder

of our current fiscal year and for reasonably foreseeable time thereafter

The Federal Trade Commission FTC administers the trade regulation rule on funeral

industry practices Funeral Practices Rule The purpose of the Funeral Practices Rule is to

prevent unfair deceptive acts or practices in connection with the provision of funeral goods or

services In April 1984 the Funeral Practices Rule became fully effective The Funeral

Practices Rule which applies to the customers of our licensees contains minimal guidelines for

funeral industry practices requires extensive price and other affirmative disclosures and imposes

mandatory itemization of funeral goods and services

number of jurisdictions regulate the sale of pre-need services and the administration of

any resulting trust funds or insurance contracts Many states and regulatory agencies have

considered or are considering regulations that could require more liberal refund and cancellation

policies for pre-need sales of products and services and increased trusting requirements These

proposals could have an adverse effect on the pre-need programs of our licensees
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From time to time the federal government states and other regulatory agencies have

considered and may enact additional legislation or regulations that could affect our business

Employees

As of December 31 2009 we employed 62 persons on full-time basis Our

management considers employee relations to be satisfactory None of our employees is covered

under collective bargaining agreements

We have not entered into employment agreements with any of our employees

Our Suppliers

We use stainless steel copper and bronze sheets in the manufacture of our metal vaults

Most of the raw materials used in the products we manufacture are generally available from

several sources

The changing prices of raw materials used in our products including steel fuel

petroleum based products and fuel related delivery costs have direct and sometimes negative

effect on our profitability We generally do not engage in hedging transactions with respect to

these purchases but do enter into fixed price supply contracts at times We have taken steps and

have plans and actions in place to mitigate the impact of rising raw material and fuel prices

including sales price adjustments However there can be no assurance that we will be able to

anticipate and react quickly to all changing raw material prices in the future

Historically we have instituted annual price increases to help offset the impact of

inflation and other rising cost factors

We are dependent on single sources for our plastic liners and adhesive and coating

products During fiscal year 2009 purchases of plastic products from WI totaled $18.0 million

and purchases of adhesive and coating products from Daubert totaled $2.7 million

We have secured long-term supply agreement for our plastic liners As part of the spin

off we entered into an exclusive five-year Manufacturing and Supply Agreement with WI under

which we receive plastic burial and urn vault liners and other plastic products from WI This

agreement automatically renews for additional two-year terms unless terminated by either party

by written notice at least one year prior to expiration of the then-current term During fiscal year

2009 purchases of plastic products from WI totaled $18.0 million The 2009 and 2010 base

prices for the products to be sold to us were established based on negotiations we had with WI

The negotiated base prices took into account then current costs and pricing and provided WI

with profit margin appropriate in contract negotiated at arms length The 2009 base prices

went into effect on January 2009 and the 2010 base prices will go into effect on January

2010 According to the agreement product prices may be increased or decreased from time to

time based on 60 day advance notice based on changes in the cost of raw materials and on an

annual basis product prices may be increased or decreased based on changes in direct labor

costs If WI does not continue to effectively perform its obligations under the Manufacturing

and Supply Agreement we may not be able to operate our business effectively and our

profitability may decline However we believe that we would be able to find another supplier or
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suppliers for our plastic products on substantially similarprices and terms which would allow us

to operate our business effectively and maintain our profitability

We have approximately 12 months remaining on our supply agreement for our adhesive

and coating products Our ten-year supply agreement with Daubert expires in April 2011 Under

the term of this agreement Daubert supplies all of our requirements for adhesive and coating

products Daubert supplies the products covered by this agreement exclusively to us and we

have agreed to purchase not less than $2.1 million of product each year that the agreement is in

effect Subject to the termination provisions of the agreement the agreement may be terminated

by either party upon 180 days written notice The agreement provides for hi-annual changes in

the purchase price for products based upon the percentage changes of the direct cost of raw

materials Annual price changes may also be made based on the percentage increase in

Dauberts direct labor cost If Daubert fails for any reason to perform on this supply agreement

we believe we would be able to find another supplier or suppliers for our adhesive and coating

products on substantially similarprices and terms

Our Credit Facility

We have entered into credit facility with Bank of America N.A The credit facility

consists of $10 million unsecured revolving line of credit that is available to us through

December 26 2011 Interest on loans obtained as result of the facility is charged at the London

Interbank Offered Rate LIBOR plus 150 or 175 basis points depending on certain financial

ratios achieved by us The credit facility limits our ability to among other things incur

additional indebtedness pay dividends or make distributions in respect of our capital stock

create liens make acquisitions and change ownership The credit facility requires us to

maintain ratio of funded debt to earnings before interest taxes depreciation and amortization

referred to as the cash flow leverage ratio of not more than two times the funded debt level and

ratio of earnings before interest and taxes to interest expense referred to as the interest

coverage ratio of more than three times the amount of interest expense for the period The

Company is in compliance with these provisions under the credit facility as of December 31

2009 There were no borrowings under this facility as of December 31 2009

Intellectual Property

We own and license number of patents on the products and manufacturing processes

that are of importance to us but we do not believe any single patent or related group of patents is

of material significance to our business as whole

We also own and license number of trademarks and service marks relating to our

products and services In addition to Wilbert and The Wilbert Bronze we believe the

following trademarks or service marks are significant to our business as whole

Avondale ST/Triune

Cameo Rose Strentex

Corrugated Choices Triune

Cremation Choices Unidex

Karine Bouchard Series Venetian

Legacy Veteran Triune
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Lifes Reflections Wilbert DataVault

Loved and Cherished Wilbert Foundation Design

Marbelon Wilbert Memorial Services

MemoryCapsule Wilbert Ovation

Monticello WilbertWay

Our ability to compete effectively depends to an extent on our ability to maintain the

proprietary nature of our intellectual property However we may not be sufficiently protected by

our various patents trademarks and service marks Additionally certain of our existing patents

trademarks or service marks may be challenged invalidated cancelled narrowed or

circumvented Beyond that we may not receive the pending or contemplated patents trademarks

or service marks for which we have applied or filed

We vigorously seek to enforce our intellectual property rights However we cannot

ensure that the copying and sale of our products by others would not materially adversely affect

the sale of our products

Transition Services Agreement

In connection with the spin-off we entered into Transition Services Agreement with WI

in order to provide for an orderly transition of our business becoming independent of WI
Pursuant to the Transition Services Agreement which expired in December 2009 WI provided

us with various services relating to human resources finance treasury and information

technology at agreed-upon pricing based on cost allocations prior to the spin-off totaling

approximately $480 thousand for the year ending December 31 2009 This agreement has been

extended on an informal basis with respect to information technology services We are in the

process of developing our own information technology systems Accordingly our reliance on

WI for this remaining service should be eliminated in the near future

Property

We own our 98700 sq ft headquarters/manufacturing facility in Broadview Illinois

We lease distribution facilities in Gastonia North Carolina and White Bear Lake Minnesota

from WI for which WI was paid approximately $219 thousand in 2009 All facilities are suitable

for their intended purpose are being efficiently utilized and are believed to provide adequate

capacity to meet demand for the next several years

USE OF PROCEEDS

As discussed in the section entitled Our Business -- Industry Trends Affecting the

Company our unit sales have declined over the last eight years principally due to industry

trends that are expected to continue In order to mitigate the impact of these industry trends on

our financial results our management and directors believe it is necessary to broaden our funeral

service product or service lines by means of development or acquisition and to strengthen our

licensee network Our management and directors believe the expenditure of funds for those

purposes involve higher degree of risk than our expenditures for ongoing operations and thus

believe it is prudent to raise additional equity capital to support those new endeavors
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Net proceeds of this offering are expected to be $2750000 if all 150000 Shares offered

hereby are sold We intend to commit these proceeds for the following uses and in the following

order of priority to identify develop and market new funeral and cremation products and

services ii to acquire businesses products or services we believe to be complementary iii to

fund expenditures associated with strengthening our licensee network and iv for working

capital to support these efforts We do not have agreements or commitments for any specific

acquisitions at this time

We expect to devote at least the first $1000000 of net proceeds to the development and

marketing of new products or services The balance of any remaining proceeds will be used to

acquire businesses products or services we believe to be complementary to fund expenditures

associated with strengthening our licensee network and for working capital As between these

last three purposes we have not determined the percentage of net proceeds that will be

committed to each anticipated use In this regard we cannot specify the proceeds to be used for

acquisitions until specific acquisitions are identified and purchase terms established

Furthermore the success of any newly developed products will determine the amount of working

capital necessary to support additional marketing inventory and distribution requirements for

these products In the event less than all of the Shares being offered are sold we do not anticipate

any change in the order of priority for the use of net proceeds We reserve the right to forego

committing any of the net proceeds for acquisitions or for strengthening the licensee network if

no attractive business acquisition opportunities are presented to us or if we determine that it is in

our best interest to commit all of the net proceeds for new product and service development or

for working capital to support such products and services In light of these variables we will

have broad discretion in the way we use the net proceeds

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization as of December 31 2009 This table

should be read together with our balance sheet as of December 31 2009 as set forth under

Financial Statements

As of

December 31 2009

Total Debt

Stockholders Equity

Common Stock $0.00 par value 177

1000000 shares authorized

177437 shares outstanding

Paid in Capital 823

Retained Earnings $12134267

Total Shareholders Equity $12135267

Total Capitalization 12.135267
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MANAGEMENT

Officers Directors and Significant Employees

Our board of directors consists of nine members Our directors and executive officers

and key employees are as follows

Name Position

Michael Bogacki Chief Financial Officer

Coll Bowen III Director

Steven Bush Director

Terry Christenberry Director

Wm Anthony Colson President and CEO

Paul Cooper Director

Randy Fehrenbacher Director

Denny Wm Knigga V.P Operations

Adrian Lee Director of Procurement Logistics

James Mans Director Chairman

Charles Morley Director

Judy Rossom Chief Accounting Officer

Joseph Weigel V.P Marketing

Dennis Welzenbach Director

Terrence Whitlock Exec V.P Secretary and Treasurer

John Williams Director

The following is description of the business background of each of our directors

officers and key employees

Michael Bogacki joined us in August 2009 as our Chief Financial Officer Prior to

that time Mr Bogacki had served as Vice President Mergers and Acquisitions for Intertek

Consumer Goods North America an organization that provides testing inspection and

certification services from 2006 to 2008 Prior to Intertek he was the Chief Financial Officer

Portfolio Companies for The Blackstone Group New York based investment banking and

alternative investment advisory firm Mr Bogacki has also served in various senior financial

roles for several other organizations including Feralloy Corporation Chicago based steel

service center and Farley Industries Inc diversified manufacturing conglomerate whose

primary holding was Fruit of the Loom Inc and began his career with Arthur Young

Company now Ernst Young Mr Bogacki is CPA holds bachelor of science degree in

commerce with concentration in accounting from DePaul University has an MBA from The

University of Chicago and is 55 years old

Coil Bowen III has served on our board since the spin-off Mr Bowen served as

director of WI from May 2006 until the spin-off Mr Bowen has been the President of Wilbert

Burial Vault Co since 1993 and the President of Greenwood Cemetery Inc since 1995

Mr Bowen was formerly the corporate treasurer of United Waste Service from 1990 to October

of 1995 Mr Bowen attended the University of Georgia and majored in Economics Mr Bowen

is 57 years old
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Steven Bush has served on our board since the spin-off and prior to the spin-off was

director of WI from August 2007 until the spin-off Mr Bush has been President of S.M Bush

since February 1999 Prior to that he served as President of Quincy Wilbert Vault Co Inc and

General Manager and then President of St Louis Wilbert Vault and New Baden Wilbert Vault

Mr Bush is 53 years old

Terry Christenberry has served on our board since the spin-off and has been

director of WI since December 1997 From 1994 until October 2009 Mr Christenberry was the

President of the investment banking firm of Christenberry Collet Co Inc of Kansas City

Missouri In October 2009 Christenberry Collet Co combined with Country Club Bank to

become Capital Advisors division of County Club Financial Services Inc Mr

Christenberry is managing director of the new firm Prior to that he was Executive Vice

President of H.B Oppenheimer Co President of its Investment Banking Division and founder

and President of its broker-dealer subsidiary from 1986 to 1994 Mr Christenberry has over 35

years of business experience including 10 years at nationally recognized public accounting

firm Mr Christenberry holds B.A in Mathematics from Texas Christian University and

Masters degree in Business Administration in Finance from Southern Methodist University

Mr Christenberry is 63 years old

Wm Anthony Colson has been our President and CEO since April 2008 Prior to joining

our company Mr Colson was Vice President General Manager of Pella Window Door

from 2006 to 2008 He also served in the capacities of President Legacy Management Partners

from 2004 to 2006 and in various positions at Batesville Casket Co from 1988 to 2004

Mr Colson has B.A in Communication Organizational Development from Indiana

University Mr Colson is 50 years old

Paul Cooper has served on our board since May 2009 Mr Cooper is the President of

Cooper Wilbert Vault Co Inc and has held this position since 1979 Mr Cooper is also

President of Cooper Vault Co Inc of Delaware and has held this position since 1981 Further

Mr Cooper is the President of Cooper Monument Company and of PJ Cooper Supply Co Inc

of Barrington New Jersey and has held these positions since 1986 and 1994 respectively Mr

Cooper is 61 years old

Randy Fehrenbacher has served on our board since May 2009 He has been Vice

President COO of Bickes Inc since June of 1990 Mr Fehrenbacher joined the Bickes

organization in 1983 and served as general manager prior to his position as Vice President and

Chief Operating Officer Mr Fehrenbacher is 57 years old

Denny Wm Knigga has been our Vice President of Operations since July of 2008 Prior

to joining our company he held position as lean management consultant to one of the largest

defense contractors BAE At BAE he was responsible for the design and cellular production of

the MRAP vehicle for the Iraqi theater of operations He held various leadership positions in

Batesville Casket from 1989 to 2006 As the Director of Operations he successfully closed the

Campbellsville Kentucky plant and was leader for the transition of lean implementation within

the manufacturing operations Mr Knigga began his manufacturing career with General Motors

in 1969 in the Indianapolis stamping facility as an Industrial Engineer and rising to shift

superintendent in his 20-year career He holds an MBA from Butler University in Indianapolis

Mr Knigga is 62 years of age
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Adrian Lee has been our Director of Procurement and Logistics since July of 2008

Prior to joining our company he served as an Operations Manager at Pella Windows and Doors

from 2006 to 2008 Operations Project Manager with Target Commercial Interiors from 2000 to

2006 and also has experience as buyer for Dayton Hudson Corporation He has BFA degree

in Commercial Interior Design and Computer Graphics Certified PMP Project Management

Professional and received certification on Six Sigma Black Belt Adrian Lee is 40 years old

James Mans has served as our chairman of the board and director since the spin-off

Mr Mans has been director and chairman of the board of WI since August 2007 having

previously served as director of WI from May 2003 through May 2006 and as Lead Director of

WI from May 2004 through May 2005 Mr Mans is the owner of Magnum Sawing Coring

Inc company engaged in concrete coring and sawing and has been self-employed as

business consultant since January 2000 He is currently certified public accountant licensed in

the State of Indiana Mr Mans was employed by KPMG LLP from February 1963 to December

1999 serving as an audit partner with KPMG LLP from October 1971 to December 1999

Mr Mans received Bachelor of Business Administration from Oklahoma University in 1963

Mr Mans is 68 years old

Charles Morley has served as director for us since the spin-off Prior to the spin-off

Mr Morley served as director of WI from 1998 through March 2007 and from May 2008 until

the spin-off Mr Morley has been an owner and treasurer of Sabbow Company Inc

concrete manufacturer and since September 2004 has been its President Mr Morley has over

40 years of business experience including 10 years in public accounting and 19 years in funeral

services Mr Morley is certified public accountant and licensed attorney Mr Morley received

B.S from Northland College M.S degree in English from Eastern Illinois University an

MBA with emphasis in Accounting and Tax from Eastern Illinois University and Juris Doctor

degree from Massachusetts School of Law Mr Morley is 64 years old

Judy Rossom joined us in August 2009 as our Chief Accounting Officer Prior to

joining our company Ms Rossom most recently served as Secretary and Treasurer for WI where

she held various senior financial roles since 2001 Prior to WI Ms Rossom was senior

accountant at Spraying Systems Company worldwide manufacturer of industrial spray nozzles

headquartered in Chicago Ms Rossom is Certified Public Accountant Ms Rossom holds

Bachelor of Business Administration-Accounting from Benedictine University and an MBA with

an emphasis in Managerial Finance from DePaul University Ms Rossom is 43 years old

Joseph Weigel has been our Vice President of Marketing since July 2008 Prior to

joining our company he was employed at Batesville Casket Company from July 1994 to July

2008 During his fourteen-year tenure with Batesville he served in their cremation marketing

and human resources departments Prior to that he spent number of years in advertising

working for regional and national ad agencies managing franchised restaurant accounts Mr

Weigel received B.S in Journalism from Ball State University and an MBA with an emphasis

in marketing from Xavier University Mr Weigel is 55 years old

Dennis Wekenbach has served on our board since May 2009 He has been an

executive with Suhor Industries for 22 years having served in the positions of Vice President of

Finance Executive Vice President Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer Prior to

joining Suhor Industries Mr Welzenbach was practicing CPA with Ernst Whinney for eight
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years Mr Weizenbach has B.A in Accounting from St Ambrose University is Certified

Public Accountant and is licensed funeral director Mr Weizenbach is 57 years old

Terrence Whitlock has been with us since July 1985 He served as our Assistant

Controller and Controller from 1985 through 2000 In addition he was appointed Secretary and

Treasurer of Joliet Wilbert Vault from March 1997 until its sale in June 1999 Since June 2000

Mr Whitlock has served as our Executive Vice President Secretary and Treasurer He also

serves as Trustee of The Wilbert Foundation and holds the office of Treasurer Mr Whitlock

earned B.S in Accounting from Illinois State University Masters degree in Business

Administration from Illinois Benedictine and is CPA Mr Whitlock is 49 years old

John Wffliams has served as director for us since the spin-off Prior to the spin-off

Mr Williams served as director of WI from September 1975 through March 2007 and from

August 2007 until the spin-off and as chairman of the board of WI in 1978 and from September

1985 through September 1994 Mr Williams has been the President and owner of The Williams

Organization group of companies that manufacture and service burial vaults since 1975 He is

president and co-owner of Arnold-Wilbert Corporation manufacturer and distributor of death

care products and other concrete products since 1985 Mr Williams received Bachelor of

Science in Business Administration in 1967 and Masters degree in Business Administration

with concentration in Finance in 1972 each from The American University Mr Williams is 65

years old

Our directors serve for term of one year or until their successor is duly elected and

qualified All of our executive officers are appointed by and serve at the discretion of our board

of directors None of the executive officers have employment agreements None of the executive

officers are related to one another or to any of the members of the board of directors

The board has three standing committees an audit committee nominating corporate

governance committee and an executive committee

With respect to the audit committee our 2008 financial information was included in the

audited financial statements of our former parent company and separate audited financial

statements were not issued for our company However our company expects to have its

financial statements audited in the future Therefore our board established an audit committee

The audit committee is composed of Messrs Christenberry chairman Mans Morley and

Welzenbach

The audit committee has the general responsibility for establishing and maintaining

communications with our internal and independent accountants reviewing the methods used and

audits made by the auditors in connection with our financial statements and reviewing with the

auditors our financial and internal accounting controls

The audit committee met with our former parents independent accountants regarding

WIs financial statements for 2008 to discuss any issues related to our company that the

accountants believed should be brought to the audit committees attention The audit committee

has engaged those same independent accountants to audit our companys financial statements for

2009 and has met with the independent accountants to discuss their planned audit approach for

our company
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The nominating/corporate governance committee assists our board by determining

desired qualifications for board members identifying individuals meeting those qualifications

and recommending to the board director nominees for the next annual meeting of shareholders or

nominees to fill vacancies on the board that may occur between shareholder meetings ii

reviews annually the qualifications and independence of board members and makes

recommendations in the composition of the board iii recommends to the board corporate

governance guidelines regarding director independence iv annually reviews such guidelines

and the provisions of its charter to confirm that such guidelines and its charter remain consistent

with sound corporate governance practices and with legal or regulatory requirements

monitors the boards compliance with its guidelines and leads the board in an annual review of

the boards performance and takes action to effect changes in incumbent directors if deemed

appropriate and vi performs such other duties required by its charter or assigned by the board

This committee is also responsible for the oversight of the business ethics and compliance

program adopted by the board and the corporate governance charter for the board adopted in

connection with the spin-off The nominating/corporate governance committee is composed of

Messrs Bowen chairman Bush Christenberry Fehrenbacher and Williams

The primary purpose of the executive committee is to assist our board by exercising the

full power and authority of the board between board meetings and while our board is not in

session The executive committee has all of the power and authority of our board except for the

limitations imposed on the authority of committees of board of directors under Illinois

corporation law The executive committee is composed of Messrs Mans chairman Bowen

Morley and Christenberry

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Executive Summary

Our board determines the compensation policy for executive officers and determines their

compensation by applying such policy The following provides an overview of our

compensation philosophy and programs for the principal executive officer as well as our four

other most highly compensated executive officers as of January 2010 referred to herein as the

Named Executive Officers

Wm Anthony Colson President Chief Executive Officer CEO

Terrence Whitlock Executive Vice President Corporate Secretary and Treasurer

Michael Bogacki Chief Financial Officer

Denny Wm Knigga Vice President of Operations

Joseph Weigel Vice President of Marketing

We have adopted pay-for-performance compensation policy for our Named Executive

Officers which links compensation to combination of personal and Company goals The

following elements comprise the total compensation awarded to our Named Executive Officers

base salary cash- based short-term incentive award under our short-term incentive plan and

other allowances
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We target all elements of our compensation program to provide compensation

opportunity at or near the median of the peer group Actual payouts under these programs can be

above or below the median based on Company and personal performance

Our annual performance award is linked directly to short-term Company goals and

performance in line with our pay-for-performance philosophy The Companys executives

participate in the same group benefit programs on substantially the same terms as other salaried

employees

Our compensation program is designed to attract motivate reward and retain executives

The board exercises discretion in determining compensation actions when necessary due to

extraordinary changes in the economy unusual events or overall Company performance

2009 Compensation of Officers

With respect to the fiscal year 2009 the following table sets forth for the named

executive officers that were serving as such at December 2009 their name and principal

positions ii portion of the year covered iii the dollar value of base salary or compensation

earned during the portion of the year covered iv the amount of discretionary bonus paid in

fiscal 2009 the dollar value of the amounts paid during the portion of the year covered to

redeem shares granted to them under our phantom stock plan and vi other compensation in the

form of automobile allowance moving allowance which is subject to repayment by the Named

Executive Officer under certain circumstances and match contributions under the 401k plan

Base Salary

Compensation Discretionary Phantom Stock Other Total

Bonus$ Redemption$ Compensation Compensation

Wm Anthony Colson 230452 30000 14512 274964

President CEO

Terrence Whitlock 176800 28636 11266 209642

Executive vice President

Michael Bogacki 56635 2750 59385

from August 10 2009

Denny Wm Knigga 153635 10000 10548 174182

Vice President of

Operations

Joseph Weigel 153635 10000 11703 175338

Vice President of Marketing

Prior to fiscal 2008 certain of our employees were granted awards under WIs phantom

stock plans which provided for the grant of phantom shares from WI that subject to vesting

requirements WI was under the obligation to redeem under certain circumstances referred to

herein as the Phantom Plans In connection with the spin-off WI agreed to fix based on an

agreed estimated fair market value of approximately $350.00 per share which estimated fair

market value was approximately the net book value per share of WI at the respective date of

27

1836096.7



grant the amounts owed to certain employees under the Phantom Plans and pay out such

amounts in accordance with certain accelerated payment schedules Plan participants in this

arrangement included one of our employees Terrence Whitlock Also in connection with the

spin-off we assumed the responsibility for paying the amount owed to Mr Whitlock as well as

certain previously fixed amounts due to Mr Whitlock and former employee under the Phantom

Plans The remaining amounts under the Phantom Plans total approximately $73000 at

December 2009

Short Term Incentive Compensation Plan for 2009 As mentioned above we have put in

place short term incentive compensation plan for the Named Executive Officers based on the

achievement of predetermined levels in the following

Unit Sales Volume of Plastic Liners

Unit Sales Volume of Metal Liners

Cremation Revenues and

Pretax Income

The short term incentive plan is based upon percentage of the participants base salary

ranging from 15% to 40% depending upon the individual The payouts under the plan are based

upon the achievement of certain minimum and maximum levels of achievement of the above

referenced metrics No payments are made if the threshold level of 80% of the predetermined

metric is not achieved and payments are capped at the achievement of 130% of the

predetermined metric The metrics have the following weighting and display the minimum

payout levels should the threshold levels be achieved and the maximum payout level

Metric Weight Threshold Outstanding

Plastic Liners 15% 10% 200%

Metal Liners 35% 10% 200%

Cremation sales 10% 10% 200%

Operating Income 40% 10% 200%

Other Benefit Programs Substantially all of our employees are eligible to participate in

our health and dental 40 1k defined contribution short and long-term disability and life

insurance plans

In connection with the spin-off we became responsible for all obligations with respect to

our employees who were enrolled in the WI Non-Qualified Supplemental Retirement Plan and

Non-Qualified Salary Deferral Plan As of December 2009 Mr Whitlock was the only

remaining employee participating in the Non-Qualified Salary Deferral Plan and no current

employees participate in the Non-Qualified Supplemental Retirement Plan The Non-Qualified

Salary Deferral Plan allows the employee to allocate portion of their annual salary up to 10%

into funded plan managed by trustee The employee obtains the benefit of tax deferral on

their contributions to the plan as well as any income related to these deferred amounts There are

no matching provisions for contributions to be made to the plan by the Company The Company

currently pays the annual expenses of the plan
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2009 Compensation of Directors

In 2009 annual retainers for our directors were paid in quarterly installments except for

the chairman of the board who received the retainer payment on monthly basis The following

is the fee schedule that is currently effective for our non-employee directors

Board Meeting Special
Committee Meeting Fees to Non-

Fees Telephone Board Employee Directors Chair Per Meeting

Meeting Fees

Non-employee Non-employee Audit Nominating/Corporate Any other

Chairman or Lead Directors Chair Committee and Governance committee per

Directors ier or Lead Director Task Forces committee @er meeting

meeting per meeting per meeting meeting

$1750 $250 $1000 $750 $500

$1500

Annual Retainer

Audit Nominating/Corporate Governance Non-employee Chairman or

Committee Chair Committee Chair Lead Director

$6000 $4000 $30000

Licensee Directors Outside Directors Executive Committee Chair

$4000 $30000 $6000

It is currently our policy that our employees do not receive any remuneration for serving

as director if such is the case

Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Our amended and restated articles of incorporation currently contain provisions to

eliminate the personal liability of directors for monetary damages resulting from breaches of

fiduciary duty as director with certain exceptions Our by-laws as amended currently

contain provisions that indemnify subject to certain exceptions any director officer employee

or agent who was or is party or threatened to be made party to any civil criminal

administrative or investigative action suit or proceeding whether brought or conducted by

third party or by or in the right of the Company against expenses including attorneys fees

judgments fines penalties and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by

him in connection with such action suit or proceeding and based on or relating to any actual or

alleged acts or omissions or neglect or breach of duty Such expenses shall generally be paid by

us on behalf of the indemnified party prior to termination of the proceedings if the indemnified

party undertakes to repay us in the event the indemnification is determined ultimately not to be

available to such person The indemnification provisions in our by-laws as amended are not
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exclusive and the general indemnification provisions of Illinois law or separate indemnification

agreements if any are entered into by us in accordance with Illinois law will also apply

SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The table below sets forth as of December 31 2009 except as otherwise noted certain

information concerning the beneficial ownership of shares of our common stock by each

director iieach officer iii our directors and officers as group and iv any person known to

beneficially own over 5% of our common stock outstanding Included are shares held by entities

or trusts that are owned or controlled by the director officer or beneficial owner and as to which

he or she has or shares voting or investment power Except as indicated by the footnotes below

we believe based on the information furnished to us that the persons named in the table below

have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock that they

beneficially own subject to applicable community property laws Applicable percentage

ownership is based on 177437 shares of common stock outstanding as of December 31 2009

Except as otherwise indicated the address of each beneficial owner is do Wilbert Funeral

Services Inc 2913 Gardner Road Broadview Illinois 60155

Name Number Title

Michael Bogacki -0- -0- Officer

Coll Bowen III 2304 1.30% Director

Steven Bickes 9224 5.20% N/A

Steven Bush 300 Director

Terry Christenberry 500 Director

Wm Anthony Colson Officer

Paul Cooper 485 Director

Randy Fehrenbacher Director

Denny Wm Knigga 0- 0- Officer

Adrian Lee Officer

James Mans Director and Officer

Charles Morley 13079 7.37% Director

Judy Rossom Officer

Joseph Suhor 1112 35738 20.1% N/A

Joseph Weigel Officer

Dennis Welzenbach 2136 1.20% Director

Terrence Whitlock Officer

John Williams 15114 8.52% Director

Current directors and named 33923 19.12%

executive officers of the Company

as group 16 persons

Mr Bickess address is do Bickes Inc 919 West Eldorado Street Decatur IL 62522

Mr Suhor address is do Suhor Industries Inc 10965 Granada Lane Suite 300 Overland Park KS 66211
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Name Number Title

Total 78885 44.17%

Less than 1%

DIVIDEND POLICY

Dividends may be paid to holders of common stock when as and if declared by our board

of directors out of funds legally available for such purpose subject to any contractual restrictions

on the payment of dividends Our board of directors does not currently anticipate paying cash

dividends in the foreseeable future as it intends to retain future earnings to finance the growth of

the business Illinois corporation law provides that dividends may only be paid out of capital

surplus or out of earnings Other than this legal restriction on the payment of dividends there

are no other limitations on our ability to pay dividends to our shareholders Our payment of

future cash dividends will depend on such factors as earnings levels anticipated capital

requirements our operating and financial condition and other factors deemed relevant by our

board

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are from time to time involved in routine litigation incidental to our operations We

intend to vigorously defend or resolve any such matters by settlement as appropriate Litigation

is inherently uncertain and always difficult to predict However based on our understanding and

evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances we believe that the routine litigation to which

we may be party is not likely in the aggregate to have material adverse effect on our results

of operations financial position or cash flows

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The following is summary of the rights of our common stock and preferred stock and

certain provisions of our amended and restated articles of incorporation and by-laws as

amended For more detailed information please see our amended and restated articles of

incorporation and by-laws as amended which are filed as exhibits to the Offering Statement of

which this Offering Circular forms part

Our authorized capital stock consists of 1000000 shares of common stock $0.001 par

value and 50000 shares of preferred stock $0.001 par value As of December 31 2009 we had

177437 shares of common stock outstanding held of record by 215 shareholders and no shares

of preferred stock

Common Stock

The holders of the common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters

submitted to vote of shareholders and are entitled to cumulate votes in the election of directors

In the election of directors shareholder is entitled to as many votes as are equal to the number

of such shareholders shares multiplied by the number of directors to be elected shareholder

may cumulate these votes and cast all for one nominee or may distribute such votes among
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two or more director nominees Under certain circumstances cumulative voting may enable

minority shareholder to gain representation on the board of directors even if the shareholder

holds small percentage of our shares outstanding At the present time assuming all

shareholders eligible actually voted shareholder with at least 17744 shares or approximately

10% of the common stock outstanding utilizing its cumulative voting rights could elect one

person to our board Assuming all of the Shares are sold and the size of our board remains

unchanged one person could be elected to our board with 32744 shares or approximately 10%

of the shares of common stock then outstanding

Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any shares of preferred stock

outstanding holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably such dividends as may be

declared by the board of directors out of funds legally available for such purpose In the event we

liquidate dissolve or wind up operations holders of common stock are entitled to share ratably

in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities and the liquidation preferences of any shares of

preferred stock outstanding There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions applicable to the

common stock

The holders of the common stock do not have any preemptive rights to acquire stock of

any kind hereafter issued or authorized

Preferred Stock

Our board of directors has the authority without further action by our shareholders to

issue from time to time up to 50000 shares of preferred stock in one or more series Our board of

directors may designate the rights preferences privileges and restrictions of the preferred stock

including dividend rights conversion rights voting rights terms of redemption liquidation

preference sinking fund terms and the number of shares constituting any series or the

designation of any series The issuance of preferred stock or the ability to issue preferred stock

could have the effect of restricting dividends on our common stock diluting the voting power of

our common stock impairing the liquidation rights of our common stock or delaying deterring

or preventing change in control We currently have no plans to issue any shares of preferred

stock After the closing of this offering no shares of preferred stock will be outstanding

Anti-Takeover Effects of Certain Provisions of Our Charter Documents

Our amended and restated articles of incorporation and by-laws as amended contain

provisions that may have the effect of discouraging delaying or preventing change in control

or unsolicited acquisition proposals that shareholder might consider favorable including

provisions authorizing the issuance of blank check preferred stock establishing notice of

transfers of beneficial ownership and advance notice requirements for nominations for election to

the board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted upon at shareholders meetings

Restrictions on Transfer

Our by-laws as amended contain restrictions on the ability of shareholder to transfer

his her or its shares of our capital stock Under these restrictions our shares of capital stock

including our common stock may not be sold assigned disposed of or otherwise transferred

except for
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transfers to other Company shareholders

transfers by gift bequest or operation of the laws of descent

transfers to an entity unaffihiated with us pursuant to merger consolidation stock-

for-stock exchange or similar transaction involving us

transfers by partnership to its partners

transfers to other persons who are not existing shareholders of the Company

provided that the transfers would be exempt from the registration requirements of the

Securities Act of 1933 as amended by virtue of the private placement exemption

provided by Section 42 of the Securities Act as if the transferor were the issuer of

the subject shares and further provided that the transferee is an accredited investor

within the meaning of Rule 50 1a under the Securities Act and

transfers pursuant to an effective registration under the Securities Act simultaneous

with registration of our stock under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended

The stock certificates for the Shares purchased in the offering will bear legend

referencing these transfer restrictions

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the compensation arrangements of our directors and executive officers

discussed above under Remuneration of Directors and Officers the following is description

of transactions during the previous two years excluding any transactions with WI prior to the

spin-off or any presently proposed transactions to which we have been or will be party in

which the amount involved exceeded or will exceed $50000 and in which any of our directors

executive officers current beneficial holders of more than 10% of our capital stock or entities

affiliated with them had or will have direct or indirect material interest

Transactions with WI in Connection with and subsequent to the Spin-off

The following officer of our company and each of the following members of our Board

of Directors are beneficial owners of common stock of WI Terrence Whitlock Coil

Bowen III Steven Bush Terry Christenberry Paul Cooper Charles Morley Dennis

Weizenbach and John Williams In addition Joseph Suhor III who beneficially owns

over 10% of our common stock is beneficial owner of common stock of WI Further James

Mans our Chairman of the Board is also the Chairman of the Board of WI As previously

discussed until the December 2008 spin-off transaction we were wholly-owned subsidiary of

WI In connection with the spin-off we entered into number of agreements with WI including

long-term supply agreement As result of their ownership of stock in WI each of these

named individuals except Mr Mans may be deemed to have material indirect interest in our

transactions with WI in connection with and subsequent to the spin-off Although Mr Mans is

not shareholder of WI he may be deemed to have material indirect interest in these same

transactions with WI by virtue of his position as an officer of that company
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Ordinary Course Sales

Certain of our directors are affiliated with one or more of our licensees as an employee

officer or equity holder of such licensee In addition Mr Suhor who beneficially owns more

than 10% of our common stock is an officer and the owner of Suhor Industries Inc licensee

of the Company As such these individuals may be deemed to have material indirect interest

in our transactions with the licensees with which they are affiliated During the fiscal years

ended December 2008 and December 2009 our sales to Suhor Industries Inc and licensees with

an affiliated person on our board of directors accounted for approximately 22% and 20% of our

total sales respectively Such sales were made under the same terms and conditions as sales to

all other licensees See Our Business General

The breakdown of these sales is as follows

2008 Percent 2009 Percent

Person Licensee of Total of Total

Randy Fehrenbacher Bickes Inc 6.11% 6.62%

Paul Cooper Cooper-Wilbert Vault Co Inc 0.72% 0.89%

Charles Morley Sabbow Co Inc 0.85% 0.78%

Steven Bush Steven Bush db/a 1.62% 1.65%

Quincy Wilbert Vault Co

Dennis Welzenbachl Suhor Industries Inc 9.71% 7.80%

Joseph Suhor

John Williams Williams Wilbert Vault Works Inc 1.27% 0.90%

Arnold-Wilbert Corporation

Nebraska Wilbert Vault Co Div of

Sioux City Wilbert Vault Co

Sioux City Wilbert Vault Co

West Grantham Associates LLC

Coll Bowen III Wilbert Burial Vault 1.35% 1.59%

Indemnification of Officers and Directors

Our amended and restated articles of incorporation and by-laws as amended provide that

we will indemnify each of our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by Illinois

law See Remuneration of Directors and Officers Indenmification of Directors and Officers

above for more details

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Structure of the Offering

We are offering to our shareholders of record as of 2010 the right to subscribe

to purchase up to 150000 Shares at subscription price of $20.00 per Share In addition to

being record holder of our shares of common stock on _______________ 2010 you must

remain the holder of record as of the subscription closing date of the common stock giving rise

to your subscription rights in this offering to be eligible to purchase Shares in the offering See

Who May Invest The maximum number of Shares that you and our other eligible

shareholders may subscribe for in the offering is subject to the allocation procedures set forth

below The offering will be conducted in up to three phases and will terminate 60 days from the
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date of this Offering Circular 2010 Subject to the closing condition of the

offering being satisfied closing of the subscriptions received will occur at the expiration of the

final phase of the offering No fractional Shares will be issued as result of the offering There

is no minimum number of Shares that must be subscribed for in order to complete the offering

Phase During the first phase Phase of the offering each of our eligible existing

shareholders will be given the opportunity to subscribe to purchase up to such persons pro rata

portion of the Shares being offered based on the number of shares of common stock held of

record by such person as of 2010 as compared with the total number of

shares of common stock held of record by all of our existing shareholders at that time For

example if you owned as of 2010 1% of our common stock then

outstanding you may subscribe for up to 1% of the Shares being offered in Phase or 1500

Shares 150000 1% We will round up or down the aggregate number of Shares you are

entitled to receive in Phase Ito the nearest whole number

The number of Shares that you may subscribe to purchase in Phase is set forth on the

subscription agreement that has been delivered to you with this Offering Circular

Phase will expire at 500 p.m Central time on ______________ 2010 unless extended

for such additional period as we deem appropriate in our sole discretion To subscribe for Shares

during Phase of the offering you must complete the subscription agreement and deliver it

along with your subscription payment in accordance with the subscription procedures discussed

below prior to the expiration of Phase If you fail to timely exercise your Phase subscription

right your rights to subscribe for Shares in the offering will expire

You may exercise all or portion of your Phase subscription right or you may choose

not to subscribe to purchase any Shares available to you in Phase If you choose not to

subscribe to purchase any Shares available to you in this phase you will continue to own your

current number of Company shares but your percentage ownership and voting rights in the

Company will be diluted if and to the extent that other shareholders participate in the offering In

this same regard if you do not exercise your Phase subscription right in full your percentage

ownership and voting rights in the Company at the completion of this offering will likely be

diluted In addition if you do not subscribe to purchase your full pro rata portion of the Shares

available to you in Phase you will not be eligible to subscribe for the Shares that remain

unsubscribed after the expiration of Phase

Phase II If any Shares remain unsubscribed after the expiration of Phase the

remaining Shares will be made available for subscription ma second phase Phase II of the

offering Only those shareholders that subscribed to purchase their full pro rata portion of the

Shares in Phase the Phase II Eligible Shareholders will be permitted to subscribe for Shares

in Phase II Accordingly you will only be able to subscribe to purchase Shares in Phase II if you

agreed to purchase your full pro rata portion of the Shares available for subscription by you in

Phase During Phase II each Phase II Eligible Shareholder may subscribe to purchase up to

such amount of the remaining Shares as equals such Phase II Eligible Shareholders pro rata

portion based on the number of Shares agreed to be purchased by such shareholder in Phase

compared to the number of Shares agreed to be purchased by all Phase II Eligible Shareholders

in Phase We will round up or down the aggregate number of Shares each Phase II Eligible

Shareholder is entitled to receive in Phase II to the nearest whole number
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The number of Shares available for purchase in Phase II will be set forth in supplement

to this Offering Circular which will be distributed to the Phase II Eligible Shareholders If you

are Phase II Eligible Shareholder the number of Shares that you may subscribe to purchase in

Phase II will be set forth on separate subscription agreement that will be delivered to you with

the Offering Circular supplement for Phase II

Subscriptions for the Shares available in Phase II must be received by 500 pm Central

time on the day that is 10 calendar days following the date of the Offering Circular supplement

for Phase II or if that day is not business day the first business day after such day unless the

Company extends the expiration of this phase for such additional period as the Company deems

appropriate in its sole discretion If you fail to timely exercise your Phase II subscription right

your right to subscribe for Shares in Phase II and any subsequent phase of the offering will

expire

You may exercise all or portion of your Phase II subscription right or you may choose

not to subscribe to purchase any Shares available to you for subscription in Phase II However

if you do not subscribe to purchase your full pro rata portion of the Shares available to you in

Phase II you will not be eligible to subscribe for Shares that remain unsubscribed after the

expiration of Phase II

The Phase II supplement discussed above as well as any supplement with respect to

Phase III of the offering will only be used to notify eligible shareholders of the total number of

Shares remaining to be purchased and will not be used for any other purpose including

extending the offering effecting change in the subscription price or otherwise modifying the

offering terms

Phase III If any Shares remain unsubscribed after the expiration of Phase II the

remaining Shares will be made available for subscription in third phase Phase III of the

offering Only those shareholders that subscribed to purchase their full pro rata portion of the

Shares in Phase II the Phase III Eligible Shareholders will be permitted to subscribe for

Shares in Phase III Accordingly you will only be eligible to subscribe to purchase Shares in

Phase III if you agreed to purchase your full pro rata portion of the Shares available for purchase

by you in Phase II During Phase III each Phase III Eligible Shareholder may subscribe to

purchase up to such amount of the remaining Shares as equals such Phase III Eligible

Shareholders pro rata portion based on the number of Shares agreed to be purchased by such

shareholder in Phase II compared to the number of Shares agreed to be purchased by all Phase III

Eligible Shareholders in Phase II We will round up or down the aggregate number of Shares

each Phase III Eligible Shareholder is entitled to receive in Phase III to the nearest whole

number Those Phase III Eligible Shareholders who subscribe to purchase their full pro rata

portion of the Shares in Phase III may also exercise an over-subscription privilege to subscribe to

purchase additional Shares that may remain unsubscribed at the expiration of Phase III on the

pro rata basis described below rounded down to the nearest whole Share number

If sufficient Shares are available we will seek to honor each over-subscription request

If however the number of Shares remaining is not sufficient to satisfy all over-subscription

requests we will allocate the available Shares subject to elimination of fractional Shares among

the Phase III Eligible Shareholders who over-subscribe in the proportion by which the number of

Shares each such Phase III Eligible Shareholder subscribed to purchase through the Phase III
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basic subscription right bears to the total number of Shares that all over-subscribing Phase III

Eligible Shareholders subscribed to purchase through the Phase III basic subscription right If

this pro rata allocation results in any Phase III Eligible Shareholder receiving greater number of

Shares than the shareholder subscribed for pursuant to the exercise of the over-subscription

privilege then such Phase III Eligible Shareholder will be allocated only that number of Shares

for which the shareholder over-subscribed and the remaining Shares will be allocated among all

other Phase III Eligible Shareholders exercising the over-subscription privilege on the same pro

rata basis described above The proration process will be repeated until all available Shares have

been allocated

Any excess subscription payments received as result of the exercise of over-subscription

privileges that have not been satisfied will be returned without interest or deduction as soon as

practicable

The number of Shares available for subscription in Phase III will be set forth in

supplement to this Offering Circular that will be distributed to all Phase III Eligible

Shareholders If you are Phase III Eligible Shareholder the number of Shares that you may

subscribe to purchase in Phase III will be set forth on separate subscription agreement that will

be delivered to you with the Offering Circular supplement for Phase III

When you send in your Phase III subscription agreement you must also send the full

subscription price for the number of additional Shares that you have requested to purchase under

the over-subscription privilege in addition to the payment due for the Shares subscribed for

arising from your Phase III basic subscription right

Subscriptions for the Shares available for purchase in Phase III including any over

subscription requests must be received by 500 pm Central time on the day that is five calendar

days following the date of the Offering Circular supplement for Phase III or if that day is not

business day the first business day after such day unless the Company extends the expiration of

this phase for such additional period as the Company deems appropriate in its sole discretion If

you fail to timely exercise your Phase III subscription rights including your Phase III over

subscription privilege your rights to subscribe for Shares in Phase III will expire

You may exercise all or portion of your Phase III subscription rights or you may

choose not to subscribe to purchase any Shares available to you for subscription in Phase III

Amendment Extension Termination or Cancellation of the Offering

As discussed above we may in our sole discretion extend the period for exercising the

subscription rights in each phase of the offering In no event however will we extend the

offering beyond 60 days after the date of this Offering Circular

We reserve the right to terminate or cancel the offering at any time prior to the offering

termination date for any reason in which event all funds received in connection with the offering

will be returned without interest or deduction to those persons who exercised their subscription

rights

We also reserve the right to amend or modify the terms of the offering any time prior to

the offering termination date If we should make any fundamental changes to the terms set forth
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in this Offering Circular we will file post-qualification amendment to the Offering Statement

in which this Offering Circular is included and offer potential purchasers who have subscribed

for rights the opportunity to reconfirm such subscriptions after we recirculate an updated

Offering Circular after the post-qualification amendment is declared effective by the SEC In

such case we will cause the escrow agent to promptly return the subscription funds of

subscribers who reject the reconfirmation offer or fail to affirmatively elect to reconfirm their

subscriptions by date that is at least five business days following recirculation of the updated

Offering Circular In addition upon such event we may extend the offering termination date to

allow holders of subscription rights ample time to make new investment decisions and for us to

recirculate updated documentation Promptly following any such occurrence we will send

notification to our shareholders announcing any changes with respect to this offering and the new

termination date The terms of the offering cannot be modified or amended after the offering

termination date Although we do not presently intend to do so we may choose to amend or

modify the terms of the offering for any reason including without limitation in order to increase

participation in the offering or to increase the total amount raised in the offering Such

amendments or modifications may include change in the subscription price or the number of

subscription rights being offered although no such changes are being presently contemplated

Closing Condition

The closing on the purchase of any Shares subscribed for in the offering is conditioned on

our receipt of an opinion of counsel in form and substance satisfactory to us and WI that the

sale of Shares in the offering will not adversely affect the tax-free status of the spin-off

transaction The opinion which must be received on or before ____________ 2010 will be

based on among other things assumptions and representations to the effect that closing on the

subscriptions received in the offering when aggregated with certain other transactions in our

stock and the stock of WI during the period beginning on the date which is two years before the

date of the spin-off and ending on the subscription closing date will not result in 50% or

greater change by vote or value in our stock ownership As more completely discussed in the

risk factor entitled Our issuance of stock in the offering could cause the spin-off to be taxable

which could result in substantial tax liability for the WI shareholders who received our common

stock in the spin-off and/or WI we believe receipt of subscriptions during Phase of the

offering from existing shareholders holding at least 31% of the shares of our common stock

outstanding indicating their agreement to purchase all of their pro rata portion of the Shares

available to them will be an important factor in us receiving the tax opinion

Because the closing on the purchase of any Shares subscribed for in the offering is

subject to this condition and due to the offering being subject to cancellation by us there is no

assurance that any or all of the Shares will be sold

Delivery of Certificates for Shares Purchased

Provided the closing condition has been satisfied and the offering has not been withdrawn

or cancelled closing on the purchase of the Shares subscribed for in all phases of the offering

will occur at the expiration of the final phase of the offering You will receive certificates

representing the Shares you have purchased as soon as practicable after the closing

No Underwriter Broker Dealer or Placement Agent
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We are directly conducting the offering through our officers and employees who will use

their best efforts to effect the sale of the Shares

Determination of Subscription Price

The subscription price was determined after considering number of factors including

our past and present operating results earnings prospects the industry in which we operate the

market prices of securities of and financial and operating information about companies engaged

in activities similar to ours our book value as determined as of our most recent fiscal year end

the results of prior offerings conducted by our former parent company the most recent sale

between shareholders of our former parent company that took place prior to the spin-off and

other similar criteria for determining value

The subscription price was set at level anticipated to provide an incentive to existing

shareholders to make an additional equity investment The book value per share of our common

stock was $51.22 and $68.39 per share as of December 27 2008 and December 31 2009

respectively You however should make an independent evaluation of the fairness of the

subscription price See Risk Factors Subscription Price for Shares

No Revocation or Change Non-Transferability of the Subscription Rights

Once you deliver subscription agreement with respect to any phase of the offering you

may not revoke or change your subscription reflected in such subscription agreement or request

return of the subscription payment tendered The subscription rights granted to you in this

offering are non-transferable and therefore may not be assigned gifted purchased sold or

otherwise transferred to anyone else

Subscription Procedures

During each offering phase in order to exercise your subscription rights you are

requested to complete the applicable subscription agreement for such phase and deliver such

subscription agreement to us on or prior to the expiration time of the applicable phase At the

time you complete and deliver your subscription agreement you must also deliver full payment

of the subscription price for each Share subscribed for in the applicable phase to us or in the case

you make payment by means of wire transfer to the escrow account referenced below The

execution and delivery of subscription agreement constitutes binding offer to buy Shares and

an agreement to hold open the offer to buy the Shares until we accept or reject your subscription

No subscriptions will be valid unless we accept such subscription in writing

We reserve the right to reject subscriptions received from shareholders who do not meet

the eligibility requirements to purchase Shares in the offering See Who May Invest

Payment Method

All subscription payments must be made in U.S dollars for the full number of Shares

being subscribed for by check or bank draft drawn upon U.S bank payable to Hinsdale

Bank Trust Company Escrow Agent for Wilbert Funeral Services Inc or by wire

transfer of immediately available funds to the escrow account maintained by us for purposes of

accepting subscription payments the Escrow Account at
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Account Holder Hinsdale Bank Trust Company as Escrow Agent for Wilbert

Funeral Services Inc

Bank Hinsdale Bank Trust Company

ABA 07 19-2540-2

Account 0250042738

Any wire transfer should clearly indicate the identity of the subscriber who is tendering

payment by wire transfer Payments will be deemed to have been received by us only upon

clearance of any uncertified check iireceipt by us of any certified check or bank draft drawn

upon U.S bank or iii receipt of collected funds in the Escrow Account designated above If

paying by uncertified personal check please note that the funds paid thereby may take at least

five business days to clear Accordingly shareholders who wish to tender payment by means of

uncertified personal check are urged to make payment sufficiently in advance of the expiration

time of the applicable phase to ensure that such payment is received and clears by such date and

are urged to consider payment by means of certified or cashiers check money order or wire

transfer of funds

The subscription agreement and subscription payment by means of check must be

delivered to us by hand delivery mail or courier service to the address below

Wilbert Funeral Services Inc

Attn Michael Bogacki Chief Financial Officer

2913 Gardner Road

Broadview Illinois 60155-4402

Telephone Number for Confirmation 708 865-1600 extension 134

If regular mail is used for delivery we recommend using registered mail properly

insured with return receipt requested Delivery to an address other than that listed above does

not constitute valid delivery

Escrow of Subscription Payments

All payments for the Shares subscribed for in the offering will be deposited in the Escrow

Account with Hinsdale Bank Trust Company as escrow agent for the benefit of subscribers

until such time as we have determined that the closing condition of the offering has been

satisfied If the closing condition has been satisfied by the termination of the offering the

escrowed funds will be released to us If the offering is withdrawn or cancelled or the closing

condition has not been satisfied by the termination of the offering 2010 the

escrow agent will promptly refund all payments you have made with respect to the Shares

subscribed without interest or deduction You will have no right to the return of your

subscription payment during the term of the escrow

Calculation of Subscription Rights Exercised

If the aggregate subscription price enclosed or transmitted with your subscription

agreement is insufficient to purchase the total number of Shares subscribed for in the

subscription agreement or if the number of Shares being subscribed for is not specified in the

subscription agreement you will be deemed to have subscribed for the maximum amount of

Shares that could be subscribed for upon payment of such amount

40

1836096.7



Determinations Regarding the Exercise of Your Subscription Rights

We will decide all questions concerning the timeliness validity form and eligibility of

the exercise of your subscription rights and any such determinations by us will be final and

binding We in our sole discretion may waive in any particular instance any defect or

irregularity or permit in any particular instance defect or irregularity to be corrected within

such time as we may determine We may reject the exercise of any of your subscription rights

because of any defect or irregularity We will not accept any exercise of subscription rights until

all irregularities have been waived by us or cured by you within such time as we decide in our

sole discretion Our interpretations of the terms and conditions of the offering will be final and

binding

No Recommendation to Shareholders

Our board of directors is making no recommendation regarding your exercise of the

subscription rights Shareholders who exercise subscription rights risk investment loss on new

money invested You are urged to make your decision based on your own assessment of our

business and financial condition our prospects for the future and the terms of this offering

Please see Risk Factors for discussion of some of the risks involved in investing in the

Shares

Material U.S Federal Income Tax Treatment of Exercising the Subscription Rights

For U.S federal income tax purposes you should not recognize income or loss upon

receipt and exercise or expiration of these subscription rights to purchase Shares for the reasons

described in Material U.S Federal Income Tax Considerations

Questions about the Offering or Exercising Subscription Rights

If you have any questions regarding the offering or completing subscription agreement

or submitting payment in the offering please contact Michael Bogacki our Chief Financial

Officer at 708 865-1600 extension 134

MATERIAL U.S FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

The following discussion is summary of the material federal income tax consequences

to U.S Holders as defined below of our common stock of the receipt of subscription rights in

the offering and the ownership and exercise or expiration of the subscription rights This

discussion is summary and does not consider all aspects of U.S federal income taxation that

may be relevant to particular U.S Holders in the light of their individual investment

circumstances or to certain types of U.S Holders that are subject to special tax rules including

partnerships banks financial institutions or other financial services entities broker-dealers

insurance companies tax-exempt organizations regulated investment companies real estate

investment trusts retirement plans individual retirement accounts or other tax-deferred accounts

persons who use or are required to use mark-to-market accounting persons that received our

common stock in satisfaction of our prior indebtedness to such persons persons that hold rights

or our common stock as part of straddle hedge or conversion transaction persons that

have functional currency other than the U.S dollar investors in pass-through entities certain

former citizens or permanent residents of the United States and persons subject to the alternative

minimum tax This discussion also does not address any federal non-income state local or
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foreign tax considerations to U.S Holders nor does it address any tax considerations to persons

other than U.S Holders This summary assumes that U.S Holders have held our common stock

exclusively as capital asset within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Internal Revenue Code

of 1986 as amended or the Code This summary is based on the Code and applicable

Treasury Regulations rulings administrative pronouncements and decisions as of the date

hereof all of which are subject to change or differing interpretations at any time with possible

retroactive effect

For purposes of this discussion U.S Holder is beneficial owner of our common

stock who is citizen or an individual resident of the United States corporation or

entity treated as corporation for U.S federal income tax purposes created or organized or

treated as created or organized in or under the laws of the United States or any political

subdivision of the United States an estate the income of which is subject to U.S federal

income taxation regardless of its source or trust if court within the United States is

able to exercise primary supervision over its administration and one or more U.S persons have

authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust or that has valid election in effect

under applicable Treasury Regulations to be treated as U.S person

If partnership or entity or arrangement treated as partnership for U.S federal income

tax purposes holds our common stock the tax treatment of partner in the partnership will

depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership In this event the

partner and partnership should consult their tax advisors concerning the tax treatment of the

receipt of subscription rights in the offering and the ownership and exercise of the subscription

rights

We have not sought and will not seek an opinion of counsel or ruling from the Internal

Revenue Service regarding the United States Federal income tax consequences of the rights

offering or the related share issuance

EACH SHARHOLDER OF OUR COMMON STOCK IS URGED TO CONSULT ITS

TAX ADVISOR REGARDING THE SPECIFIC FEDERAL STATE LOCAL AND FOREIGN

INCOME AND OTHER TAX CONSIDERATIONS OF THE RECEIPT OF SUBSCRIPTION

RIGHTS IN THE OFFERING AND THE OWNERSHIP AND EXERCISE OF THE

SUBSCRIPTION RIGHTS

Receipt Expiration and Exercise of the Subscription Rights Tax Basis and Holding Period

of Shares Received upon Exercise of the Subscription Rights

Generally the distribution of stock which includes distribution of rights to acquire stock of the

distributing corporation by corporation to its shareholders with respect to their stock is not

taxable to such shareholders pursuant to Section 305a of the Code However if distribution

of stock or rights to acquire stock is within one of several exceptions to the general rule of

Section 05a of the Code set forth in Section 05b of the Code the distribution may be

taxable to the shareholders See Risk Factors -- The receipt of subscription rights may be

treated as taxable distribution to you
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While we do not believe that the offering should result in taxable event under Section

305 of the Code there can be no assurance that our application of Section 305 of the Code to the

offering is accurate In the event the IRS successfully asserts that the receipt of subscription

rights is currently taxable pursuant to Section 305b of the Code each holder would be

considered to have received distribution with respect to such holders stock in an amount equal

to the fair market value of the subscription rights received by such holder on the date of the

distribution This distribution generally would be taxed as dividend income to the extent of your

ratable share of our current and accumulated earnings and profits The amount of any

distribution in excess of our earnings and profits will be applied to reduce but not below zero

your tax basis in your stock and any excess generally will be taxable to you as capital gain

long-term if your holding period with respect to your common stock is more than one year as of

the date of distribution and otherwise short-term Under current law for taxable years beginning

prior to January 2011 so long as certain holding period requirements are satisfied the

maximum federal income tax rate on most dividends received by individuals is generally 15% In

the event the IRS successfully asserts that the receipt of subscription rights is taxable your tax

basis in the subscription rights received pursuant to the rights offering would be equal to their

fair market value on the date of distribution and the holding period for the rights would begin

upon receipt

Unless otherwise noted the remainder of the discussion under this heading Receipt

Expiration and Exercise of the Subscription Rights Tax Basis and Holding Period of Shares

Received upon Exercise of the Subscription Rights assumes that the distribution of the

subscription rights in the rights offering will not result in taxable event under Section 305 of

the Code

If you allow the subscription rights received in the offering to expire you should not

recognize any gain or loss upon the expiration of the subscription rights You also should not

recognize any gain or loss upon the exercise of the subscription rights received in the offering

and the tax basis of the Shares acquired through the exercise of the subscription rights should

equal the sum of the subscription price for the Shares and your tax basis if any in the

subscription rights

Your tax basis in the subscription rights will generally be zero unless either the fair

market value of the subscription rights on the date the subscription rights were distributed is

equal to or exceeds 15% of the fair market value on that date of our common stock with respect

to which the subscription rights are received or you elect in your United States federal

income tax return for the taxable year in which the subscription rights are received to allocate

part of the tax basis of the common stock to the subscription rights In the case of1 or

above portion of your basis in our common stock with respect to which the subscription rights

are received will be allocated to the subscription rights in proportion to the respective fair market

values of our common stock and the subscription rights on the date the subscription rights were

distributed The fair market value of the subscription rights on the date the subscription rights

were distributed is uncertain and we have not obtained and do not intend to obtain an appraisal

of the fair market value of the subscription rights on that date In determining the fair market

value of the subscription rights you should consider all relevant facts and circumstances

including any difference between the subscription price set forth in this offering and the trading

price if any of our common stock on the date that the subscription rights were distributed the

length of the period during which the subscription rights may be exercised and the fact that the
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subscription rights are non-transferable If you have tax basis in the subscription rights and

you allow the subscription rights to expire the tax basis of our common stock owned by you

with respect to which such subscription rights were distributed will be restored to the tax basis of

such common stock immediately before the receipt of the subscription rights in the offering The

holding period for the Shares acquired through the exercise of the rights will begin on the date

the rights are exercised

Sale of Shares and Receipt of Distributions on Shares

You will recognize capital gain or loss upon the sale of the Shares acquired through the

exercise of subscription rights in an amount equal to the difference between the amount realized

and your tax basis in the Shares that you sold The capital gain or loss will be long-term if your

holding period in the Shares is more than one year

Long-term capital gains recognized by individuals are taxable under current law at

maximum rate of 15% Under current law long-term capital gains recognized by individuals

will be taxable at maximum rate of 20% for taxable years beginning after December 31 2010

Long-term capital gains recognized by corporations are taxable at ordinary corporate tax rates If

you have held your Shares for one year or less your capital gain or loss will be short-term

Short-term capital gains are taxed at maximum rate equal to the maximum rate applicable to

ordinary income Your ability to use any capital loss is subject to certain limitations

Distributions if any on the Shares acquired through the exercise of subscription rights

will be taxable to you as dividend to the extent that the cash and fair market value of property

is allocable to our current and accumulated earnings and profits for the taxable year in which the

distribution is made Dividends received by corporate holders of our common stock are taxable

at ordinary corporate tax rates subject to any applicable dividends-received deduction

Dividends received by non-corporate individual holders of our common stock in taxable years

beginning before January 2011 are taxed under current law at the holders capital gain tax rate

maximum rate of 15% provided that the holder meets applicable holding period and other

requirements Under current law dividends received by non-corporate holders of our common

stock in taxable years after 2010 will be taxed as ordinary income at maximum rate of 39.6%

Any distributions in excess of our current and accumulated earnings and profits will be treated as

tax-free return of basis and any further distributions in excess of your basis in our common

stock will be treated as gain from the sale or exchange of such common stock

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of our common stock offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Polsinelli

Shughart PC Kansas City Missouri

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission the

Commission Form 1-A Notification pursuant to Regulation of the rules and regulations

under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended of which this Offering Circular is apart in

connection with the Shares offered under this Offering Circular This Offering Circular omits

certain information contained in the Form 1-A Notification and reference is hereby made to the

Form 1-A Notification and exhibits thereto for further information with respect to us and the
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Shares to which this Offering Circular relates The Form 1-A Notification may be read and

copied at the Commissions Public Reference Room at 100 Street N.E Washington D.C

20549 Information on the operations of the Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling

the Commission at -800-SEC-03 30
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INDEX TO FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following unaudited financial statements are included in this index

Annual Financial Statements

Balance Sheet as of December 31 2009 and December 27 2008 F-2

Statements of Earnings for the Twelve Months Ended December 31 2009 and F-4

December 27 2008

Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity for the Twelve Months Ended F-5

December 31 2009 and December 27 2008

Statements of Cash Flows for the Twelve Months Ended December 31 2009 F-6

and December 27 2008

Notes to Financial Statements for the Twelve Months Ended December 31 F-7

2009 and December 27 2008
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
Unaudited Financial Statements

December 31 2009 and December 27 2008
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
Balance Sheets

Unaudited

As of

December 31 December 27

2009 2008

2009 2008

Current assets

Cash 1116683 350

Trade accounts receivable 6437715 8811860

Allowance for doubtful accounts 167297 250000

Net accounts receivable 6270418 8561860

Inventories 4366990 5284820

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 240673 45255

Deferred income taxes 796570 674645

Refundable income taxes 41692

Total current assets 12833026 14566930

Property plant and equipment

Land and improvements 1139014 1139014

Buildings and improvements 3438662 3438662

Machinery and equipment 4598120 4157418

Furniture and fixtures 2469728 2475266

Construction in progress
210227 403311

Total property plant and equipment 11855751 11613671

Less accumulated depreciation 8837932 8565043

Net property plant and equipment 3017819 3048628

Other assets

Deferred income taxes non-current 54653 150787

Other non-current assets 386402 910391

Total other assets 441055 1061178

Total assets 16291900 $18676736

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
Balance Sheets

Unaudited

As of

December 31 December 27

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 2009 2008

Current liabilities

Accounts payable
2651807 4222525

Accrued income taxes 72163

Other current liabilities 959751 1375809

Total current liabilities 3683721 5598334

Long term debt less current maturities 3500000

Other noncurrent liabilities 472912 489390

Total liabilities 4156633 9587724

Shareholders equity

Common stock $0.00 par value 1000000 shares authorized

177437 shares issued and outstanding
177 177

Paid in capital
823 823

Retained earnings
12134267 9088012

Total shareholders equity 12135267 9089012

Total liabilities and shareholders equity 16291900 18676736

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

F-3

1836096.7



WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
Statements of Earnings

Unaudited

For the Twelve Months Ended

December 31 December 27

2009 2008

Net sales 51427771 56485585

Royalty income 679482 715718

Total revenues 52107253 57201303

Cost of goods sold 40344981 46735552

Gross profit
11762272 10465751

Operating expenses
6543498 7347335

Operating income 5218774 3118416

Equity in loss of unconsolidated entity
70303

Other expense income net 52339 266486

Earnings before income taxes 5166435 3314599

Provision for income taxes 2120180 1236345

Net earnings 3046255 2078254

Net earnings per
share 17.17 11.71

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC

Statements of Changes in Shareholders Equity

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31 2009 and December 27 2008

Unaudited

Balance at December 312007

Net earnings

Cash transferred to Wilbert Inc

Net effect of the Spin-off

Transaction

Balance at December 27 2008

Net earnings

Balance at December31 2009

Total

Retained shareholders

___________ ____________
earnings equity

11620069 11621069

2078254 2078254

4610311 4610311

823 823
________________ __________________

177 823 9088012 9089012

____________ _____________
3046255 3046255

177 823 12134267 12135267

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

Additional

Common paid-in

stock capital
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
Statements of Cash Flows

Unaudited

For the Twelve Months Ended

December 31 December 27
2009 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATiNG ACTIVITIES

Net earnings
3046255 2078254

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 304665 435571

Deferred taxes 25792 306332

SERP liability
and funding

11894

Net change in investment in unconsolidated entity
90409

Loss gain on sale of fixed assets
15118 2314

Changes in assets and liabilities

Increase decrease in receivables 2291442 721281

Increase decrease in inventories
917830 107387

Increase decrease in prepaid expenses
and other current assets 195418 44480

Increase decrease in other assets 523989 5881

Decrease increase in accounts payable
1570718 637708

Decrease increase in income taxes 30471

Decrease increase in other current liabilities 416058 115029

Decrease increase in other noncurrent liabilities 6472 171165

Net cash provided by operating activities 4905307 3222529

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 7000 35500

Additions to fixed assets 295974 293229

Net assets purchased from Wilbert Inc in the Spin-off Transaction 1854489

Net cash used in investing activities 288974 2112218

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Debt 3500000

Debt incurred in the Spin-off Transaction 3500000

Cash transferred to Wilbert Inc 4610311

Net cash used in financing activities 3500000 1110311

Net increase in cash 1116333

Cash at beginning of period
350 350

Cash at end ofperiod
1116683 350

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

NOTE NATURE OF BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION

Prior to December 2008 Wilbert Funeral Services Inc the Company operated its

business as wholly-owned subsidiary of Wilbert Inc On December 27 2008 the ownership

of the Companys common stock was spun-off from Wilbert Inc to the shareholders of Wilbert

Inc through tax-free distribution of Company shares the Spin-off Transaction Certain

assets and liabilities of Wilbert Inc were transferred to the Company at their historical book

value at the time of the Spin-off Transaction As result of the Spin-off Transaction the

Company now operates independently of Wilbert Inc and its subsidiaries

The accompanying financial statements reflect the historical results of operations

financial position and cash flows of the Company The historical cost basis of assets and

liabilities has been reflected in these financial statements Allocations of certain costs incurred

by Wilbert Inc are included in these financial statements based on the methods described in

note However the financial information in these financial statements does not necessarily

represent the expense that would have been incurred had the Company been separate stand

alone entity for 2008 and therefore may not necessarily reflect the Companys results of

operations financial position and cash flows had the Company been stand-alone entity during

2008

The Company supplies network of independently owned licensees who are granted the

right to manufacture and sell Wilbert burial vaults The Company sells burial vault forms

liners and other related products to the licensees Most of the Companys customers are located

in the United States

NOTE SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of

contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements Estimates also affect the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from

those estimates

Change in Fiscal Year

In 2009 the Company changed its fiscal year from fiscal year ended the last Saturday in

December to calendar year ended December 31 The comparative year-end for 2008 would

have been December 31 2008 The accompanying financial statements for 2009 and 2008 have

not been changed to reflect the effect of the change in year-end because the effect of this change
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

did not have material effect on the financial position or results of operations of the Company as

presented herein in either 2009 or 2008

Cash

Of the cash held on deposit essentially all of the cash balances were in excess of the

amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation The Company has not

experienced any losses as result of its cash concentration

Accounts Receivable

The Company determines the amount of bad debt reserve required at the end of period

based upon the aging of the total accounts receivable balance All receivables greater than 90

days old are evaluated for collectability to determine if increases or decreases in the established

reserve are necessary Charges against the reserve are made once receivable has been

determined to be uncollectible and recovery is not likely

The following table shows the allowance for doubtful accounts activity for the year ended

December 31 2009 and December 27 2008

2009 2008

Beginning balance $250000 $250000

Accounts written off 82703

Ending balance $167297 $250000

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when products are shipped and the following criteria

are met the customer takes ownership and assumes risk of loss collection of the relevant

receivable is probable pervasive evidence of an arrangement exists and the sales price is fixed or

determinable Shipping and handling expenses charged to customers are included in net sales

and the related costs are included in cost of goods sold

Royalty revenues earned from licensees of the Company are recorded based on the

number of vaults interred during the fiscal year and are included in net sales

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market value net realizable value Cost is

determined by the last in first out LIFO method If the first in first out FIFO method of

inventory valuation had been used inventories would have been $3829054 and $3771457

higher than reported at December 31 2009 and December 27 2008 respectively Cost of sales

would have been $57597 and $62968 lower for 2009 and 2008 respectively if the FIFO

method had been used to value all inventories

F-8
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost Depreciation is calculated using the

straight-line and declining-balance methods over the following useful lives

Buildings and improvements to 40 years

Machinery and equipment to 15 years

Furniture and fixtures to 10 years

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable

Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an

asset to future undiscounted cash flows Recoverability of assets held for disposal is measured by

comparing the carrying amount of an asset to the expected proceeds upon disposal net of any

costs to dispose write-down is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds

its fair value

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method whereby deferred tax

assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences

between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their

respective tax basis Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax laws and

rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are

expected to be recovered or settled The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in

tax laws or rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date

The Company was included in the consolidated Federal and state income tax returns of

Wilbert Inc for all periods prior to the year-ended December 31 2009 Income taxes were

provided on separate return basis prior to the Spin-off Transaction Subsequent to the Spin-off

Transaction income taxes have been provided based upon the operations and tax attributes of the

Company All current taxes due and payable prior to the Spin-off Transaction were paid to

Wilbert Inc in the period that they were incurred and no amounts were due and payable to

Wilbert Inc at December 27 2008 Current taxes due and payable subsequent to the Spin-off

Transaction have been paid to the respective taxing authorities using an estimate of the taxable

income of the Company during the 2009 period

In July 2006 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued guidance that

clarifies the accounting for income taxes and establishes the criterion that an individual tax

position has to meet for some or all of the benefits of that position to be recognized in the

Companys financial statements On initial application the guidance will be applied to all tax

positions for which the statute of limitations remains open Only tax positions that meet the

more-likely-than-not recognition threshold at the adoption date will be recognized or continue to

be recognized The cumulative effect of applying this guidance will be reported as an adjustment
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

to retained earnings at the beginning of the period in which it is adopted The adoption of this

guidance as of January 2009 did not have material effect on the Companys financial

statements

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated using the weighted-average number of common

shares outstanding during the year The number of shares outstanding has been retroactively

adjusted to reflect the shares outstanding at the time of the Spin-off Transaction for the purpose

of calculating basic earnings per share The Company has no potentially issuable common stock

equivalents that would have dilutive effect on the number of outstanding shares

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Companys financial instruments include trade accounts and notes receivable

nonqualified plan investments accounts payable and debt Management believes that the fair

values of all financial instruments were not materially different than their carrying values at

December 31 2009 and December 27 2008

New Accounting Standards

In June 2009 the FASB issued authoritative guidance establishing two levels of U.S

generally accepted accounting principles US GAAP authoritative and non-authoritative

and making the ASC as hereinafter defined the source of authoritative non-governmental

GAAP except for the rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange

Commission This guidance which was incorporated into Accounting Standards Codification

ASC Topic 105 Generally Accepted Accounting Principles was effective for financial

statements issued for interim and annual periods ending after September 15 2009 The adoption

of ASC Topic 105 changed certain disclosure references to US GAAP but did not have any

other effect on the Companys financial statements

In May 2009 the FASB issued authoritative guidance establishing general standards of

accounting for disclosure of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial

statements are issued This guidance which was incorporated into ASC Topic 855 Subsequent

Events was effective for interim or annual financial periods ending after June 15 2009 and the

adoption did not have material impact on the Companys financial statements

NOTE INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following at December 31 2009 and December 27 2008
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

2009 2008

Inventories

Raw material $1268296 2143100

Work-in-process 226741 100110

Finished goods 7481082 7456908

Inventory obsolescence reserve 780075 643841

Inventories at the FIFO method 8196044 9056277

Adjustment to LIFO method 3829054 3771.457

Total inventories at the LIFO method 4.3 66990 5284.820

NOTE LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31 2009 and December 27 2008

2009 2008

Line of credit $3500000

The Company maintains $10000000 revolving credit facility with Bank of America

NA which expires December 26 2011 the Agreement Under the Agreement borrowings

bear interest at various LIBOR rates London InterBank Offered Rate or the prime rate plus

margin based on certain financial ratios The interest rate for the year ended December 31 2009

was 1.735% The Agreement also includes charge for the unused portion of the facility At

December 31 2009 there were no borrowings outstanding under the Agreement The Agreement

is unsecured with negative pledge on all assets The Agreement requires the maintenance of

certain financial ratios as defined by the Agreement The Company is currently in compliance

with all required financial covenants

NOTE EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

401k Plan

Employees of the Company participated in the Wilbert Inc 40 1k defined contribution

plan the 401k Plan which covers substantially all employees An employee is eligible to

participate in the 401k Plan upon completion of at least six months of service The 401k Plan

allows employees to contribute up to the annual limit of the lesser of 60% of eligible

compensation or the IRS maximum limit The Company match is equal to 100% of the first 3%

of eligible compensation and 50% of the next 2% of eligible compensation The Company
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

contributed $118957 and $118771 to the 401k Plan during the periods ended December 31

2009 and December 27 2008 respectively

Non qualed Salary Defrrral Plan

Wilbert Inc at the direction of its Board of Directors established Nonqualified Salary

Deferral Plan in November 1995 for certain key members of management The salary deferral

plan is defined contribution plan that contains no matching provision for any amounts deferred

by participants under the plan The Company has one participant in the plan That individual

controls the investment election of plan assets which are held by trustee Assets of the plan are

subject to creditors in the event of insolvency of the Company Plan assets totaled $231145 and

$209656 at December 31 2009 and December 27 2008 respectively

NOTE INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following at December 31 2009 and

December 27 2008

2009 2008

Current $1858308 $1403707

Federal 287664 138970

State 2145972 1542677

22334 276744

Deferred 3458 29588

Federal 25792 306332

State $2120180 $1236345

reconciliation of the U.S Federal statutory income tax rate to the effective tax rate is as

follows at December 31 2009 and December 27 2008

2009 2008

U.S Federal statutory rate 34.0% 34.0%

State income taxes net of federal benefits 3.6 3.3

Other net

Effective income tax rate 41.0%

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities for the years ended December 31 2009 and

December 27 2008 were comprised of the following
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

Deferred tax assets liabilities 2009 2008

Inventory $443397 $352160

Compensation 234846 284590

Receivables 62402 93250

Other 169499 22847

Depreciation 58921 72585

Net deferred tax assets $85 1223 $8254

Deferred income taxes are recognized for future tax consequences of temporary

differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of the assets and

liabilities Management considers whether it is more likely than not that recorded tax assets will

be realized

The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future

taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible The

Company has not provided valuation allowance as result of the Companys continued

positive financial results

The Company recognizes the financial statement benefit of tax position only after

determining that the relevant tax authority would more likely than not sustain the position

following an audit For tax positions meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold the amount

recognized in the financial statements is the largest benefit that has greater than 50% likelihood

of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant tax authority There was no material

unrecognized tax liability as of December 31 2009

The Company is subject to income taxes in the U.S Federal jurisdiction and various state

jurisdictions Tax regulations within each jurisdiction are subject to the interpretation of the

related tax laws and regulations and require significant judgment to apply Generally tax years

back to January 2007 and ending December 27 2008 are open for Wilbert Inc for Federal

and state tax purposes The tax years beginning December 28 2008 and ending December 31

2009 are open for the Company for Federal and state tax purposes

The Companys management periodically estimates the probable tax obligations of the

Company using historical experience in tax jurisdictions and informed judgments There are

inherent uncertainties related to the interpretation of tax regulations in the jurisdictions in which

the Company transacts business The judgments and estimates made at point in time may

change based on the outcome of the tax audits as well as changes to or further interpretations of

regulations If such changes take place there is risk that the tax rate may increase or decrease

in any period There are no tax accruals for tax liabilities related to potential changes in

judgments and estimates for Federal and state tax issues at December 31 2009
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

NOTE COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

At December 31 2009 the minimum future lease payments due under non-cancelable

operating leases and commitments are as follows

Years ending December 31

2010 $173350

2011

2012

2013

2014 and thereafter

$173350

During fiscal 1994 the Company introduced the Wilbert Guaranteed Vault Program

the Programin order to enhance the ability of the Company and its participating licensees to

serve the pre-need funeral service market Under the terms of the Program the participating

Wilbert licensee commits to the availability of the product specified in the certificate of

pre-sale the Certificate or substantially similarproduct for period of twenty years and

iideliver the Wilbert product and services specified in the Certificate at the time of need

The licensee also commits to the price of the product and services at the current market

price adjusted for not more than the rate of inflation and the Company guarantees the

participating licensees performance at the time of need

Management believes that the existence of any potential contingent liability resulting

from the difference in the committed price for the product and services to be rendered and the

then-current market price thereof is immaterial to its financial position or results of operations

During the 1930s the Company introduced the Wilbert Burial Vault Guarantee the

WBVG Under the terms of the WBVG the participating Wilbert licensee the

Manufacturer commits to the replacement of burial vault for predetermined number of

years if upon internment it has failed in any way to resist the entrance of water or any element

found in the soil in which it is interred The WBVG contains detailed language regarding the

disinterment process and required notices The Company is obligated to perform under the

WBVG in the event that the Manufacturer is no longer in business The WBVG stipulates
that

the Company must maintain designated assets in excess of $25000 at all times Assets of the

WBVG program totaled $37952 and $38153 at December 31 2009 and December 27 2008

respectively

The Company is party to ten-year supply agreement with Daubert Chemical Company

Inc Daubert that expires in April 2011 Under the terms of this agreement Daubert has

agreed to supply all of the Companys requirements for adhesive and coating products

manufactured by Daubert under license from the Company Daubert agreed to supply the
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

products covered by this agreement exclusively to the Company and the Company agreed to

purchase not less than $2100000 of product each year that the contract is in effect Subject to

the termination provisions of the agreement the agreement may be terminated by either party

upon 180 days written notice The agreement provides for bi-annual changes in the purchase

price for products based upon the percentage change of the direct cost of raw materials Annual

price changes may also be made based on the percentage change of Dauberts direct labor cost

The Company is involved in certain legal actions arising in the ordinary course of

business In the opinion of management the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have

material adverse effect on the Companys financial position or results of operations

NOTE INVESTMENTS IN UNCONSOLIDATED ENTITIES

On October 2006 the Company invested $160000 in Paws and Remember LLC

Paws and Remember Paws and Remember was formed in September 2006 and is engaged

in the development and marketing of franchises for pet cremation and related services throughout

the United States and Canada These franchises are operated by independent entrepreneurs under

the terms of franchise agreement The Company uses the equity method of accounting for its

investment in Paws and Remember The Company owns and has owned 50% of Paws and

Remember since inception of Paws and Remember In 2007 the Company invested and

additional $160000 in Paws and Remember and had cash investment in Paws and Remember

of $320000 at the end of 2007 In 2008 the Company invested an additional $100000 in Paws

and Remember and had cash investment in Paws and Remember of $420000 at the end of

2008 The Companys investment in Paws and Remember has been reduced by $587458 as of

December 31 2009 and December 27 2008 to recognize the Companys share of the

accumulated operating losses and is included as $167458 component of Other noncurrent

liabilities on the balance sheets as of December 31 2009 and December 27 2008 respectively

On November 2007 Paws and Remember established revolving line of credit the

Credit Line with Bank of America N.A as amended for loans up to $400000 with interest

payable monthly at the prime rate 3.25% at December 31 2009 plus 0.50 percentage points

The Credit Line matures on July 31 2010 The Credit Line is collateralized by substantially all

assets of Paws and Remember of approximately $262000 and the loan balance outstanding was

$240000 as of December 31 2009 The Credit Line is guaranteed by the equity investors of

Paws and Remember

NOTE RELATED PARTIES

Prior to the Spin-off Transaction the Company participated in the cash management

program of Wilbert Inc Funding requirements when needed were supplied to the Company by

Wilbert Inc as its sole source of financing Free cash flow generated by the Company when
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

available was transferred on daily basis to the corporate bank accounts of Wilbert Inc The

Cash transferred to Wilbert Inc of $4610311 as displayed on the Statements of Cash Flows for

the twelve months ended December 27 2008 represents the net amount of free cash flow

generated by the Company in that period That amount was used to reduce Wilbert Inc.s

investment in the Company during that period

Wilbert Inc provided certain services and incurred certain costs related to the Company

prior to the Spin-off Transaction Under the terms of transition services agreement with

Wilbert Inc the Company obtains services related to the administration of treasury human

resources finance and information technology at agreed upon pricing based on cost allocations

prior to the Spin-off Transaction These services were provided to the Company during 2009

and the agreement expired on December 26 2009 These services are included in operating

expenses and totaled pretax expense of $480000 and $1032096 for the periods ended

December 31 2009 and December 27 2008 respectively These amounts were paid to Wilbert

Inc in the ordinary course of business and are in addition to the amounts described above These

expenses were proportionally allocated to the Company based upon the amounts incurred by

Wilbert Inc and shared with the Company based upon variety of factors including revenues

payroll and fixed assets These charges represent amounts that management believes would have

been incurred to duplicate the services provided had the Company operated on stand-alone

basis The operating results for the periods ended December 31 2009 and December 27 2008

also included rent charged by Wilbert Inc for the use of various facilities owned or leased by

Wilbert Inc and used by the Company in the amounts of $219150 and $459116 respectively

These amounts were paid to Wilbert Inc in the ordinary course of business and are in addition

to the amounts described above

Wilbert Inc manufactured plastic burial and urn vault liners and certain other plastic

products for the Company which prior to the Spin-off Transaction were purchased under an

open purchase order at negotiated price Purchases from Wilbert Inc amounted to

$23677657 for the period ended December 27 2008 These amounts were paid to Wilbert Inc

in the ordinary course of business and are in addition to the amounts described above

Concurrent with the Spin-off Transaction Wilbert Inc and the Company entered into

five-year supply agreement for the Companys requirements for plastic burial and urn vault

liners and certain other plastic products The agreement will automatically renew for two-year

terms thereafter unless either party provides notice of its intent not to renew at least one year

prior to the expiration of the then-current term The 2009 and 2010 base prices for the products

to be sold to the Company were established based on negotiations between both parties The

negotiated base prices took into account then-current costs and pricing and provided Wilbert

Inc with profit margin appropriate in contract negotiated at arms length The initial base

prices went into effect on January 2009 According to the agreement product prices may be

increased or decreased from time to time based on 60-day advance notice based on changes in

the cost of raw materials and on an annual basis product prices may be increased or decreased

based on changes in direct labor costs Purchases from Wilbert Inc amounted to $18012692

for the period ended December 31 2009
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WILBERT FUNERAL SERVICES INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31 2009 AND DECEMBER 27 2008 Unaudited

In connection with the process of the Company preparing an offering of its common

stock to its current shareholders the Rights Offering director of the Company who is also

shareholder of the Company Terry Christenberry provided services to the Company based

upon his expertise as an investment banking professional Mr Christenberry charged the

Company $14699 for his services on the Rights Offering through December 31 2009 of which

$2625 remained unpaid as of December 31 2009

NOTE SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company evaluated its December 31 2009 financial statements for subsequent

events through April 14 2010
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